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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFIC9wΩ{ w9thw¢ 

 
This year has been largely characterised by the challenging market conditions and our financial results are a reflection of this tough environment. Despite this, I 

am pleased to report we finished the year in a solid financial position and operational activity was steady across our service lines. 

 

Achievements include: 

 

¶ The award and commencement of a five year inspection, maintenance and repair (IMR) contract for Oil Search Limited, covering their assets within 

Papua New Guinea.  

¶ Commencement of operations at our new facility in Western Australia, which houses all Perth based service lines.  

¶ The permanent placement of one of our remotely operated vehicles (ROVs) on-ōƻŀǊŘ DŀǊŘƭƛƴŜΩǎ a± YƻƳƳŀƴŘŜǊ ǾŜǎǎŜƭΦ 

¶ The award of a repair project utilising our dry underwater welding technology (NEPSYS®) for a new client in South East Asia.  

¶ The award of a Master Services Agreement (MSA) by Chevron Australia for facilities maintenance on Barrow Island. 

¶ Ongoing works with McDermott on the Inpex operated Ichthys field, for a number of service lines. 

Subsequent to year end, we signed a 12 month charter for the Offshore Guardian, a 34 metre DP1 survey, diving and ROV shallow water vessel which will 

provide our clients with a fully integrated Neptune vessel and IMR solution. In addition to this charter, we will also continue to work closely with our other vessel 

partners where larger or alternative vessels are required to provide integrated solutions. 

 

KEY CLIENTS AND SUSTAINABILITY 

During 2016, we continued to work closely with a number of our existing clients including Quadrant Energy, McDermott and Inpex. In addition to this, we also 

secured new contracts with some other major oil and gas operators including, Oil Search Chevron and Esso. In the UK, our Engineering service line was awarded 

an extension of an existing framework agreement with BP. The success of this relationship and the demand for our proven technical engineering capabilities is 

driving the expansion of this service line into new geographical areas in 2017.  

 

A key focus for the year was maintaining sustainable revenue streams and establishing solid foundations for future growth. We achieved this through a 

continued focus on our established core capabilities, an expansion of our regional footprint and the development of our products and services.  

 

HEALTH AND SAFETY 

We maintained our consistent health and safety performance throughout 2016, with three of our businesses achieving six years without a Lost Time Injury (LTI). 

Across the group we celebrated 1310 days LTI free at the date of this report. As always, health and safety will remain a core focus in 2017. We will continue the 

rollout of our Behavioural Based Safety (BBS) system globally during the year, along with other programs aimed at maintaining and improving our safety 

performance. 

 

OUTLOOK 

The conditions of the global oil and gas industry look set to continue to provide challenges to both operators and service providers in 2017 and beyond. 

Regardless of this, we will continue to seek out opportunities to expand our global footprint, develop our service capability and pursue appropriate strategic 

partners to work with. There still remains significant opportunities available in the market and we will continue pursuing such work aggressively, whilst always 

taking a balanced view with regards to risk.  

 

I do however, remain cautious of the year ahead and will continue working closely with our global leadership team to focus on coordinated business 

development and customer management, key strategic opportunities for growth, cost efficiencies and the continued overall financial strength of the Group.  

 

In closing, I would like to personally thank the entire Neptune team for their continued support and ongoing commitment to Neptune in what are very difficult 

market conditions.  

 

 

 

 

 

Robin King 

 

Chief Executive Officer 

Dated this 29 day of June 2016 
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DIRECTORSΩ REPORT  

 

Your Directors present their report on the Company and its controlled entities (the Group) for the financial year ended 31 March 2016.  

 

The names of Directors in office at any time during or since the end of the year are: 
 
Mr Boon Wee Kuah 

Mr Peter Wallace  

Mr Dominic Siu 

Mr Robin King  

 
 
Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of this report unless otherwise stated. 
 
INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS 

 

Mr Boon Wee Kuah  Chairman  

Qualifications  Mr Kuah has a Bachelor of Engineering (1st Class Honours) from Imperial College of Science and Technology, 

London. He is also a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW), having 

trained with KPMG in London. 

 

Experience  Mr Kuah is the Group CEO of MTQ Corporation Limited; he joined the MTQ Board on 10 October 2006 and 

assumed his current role in July 2010. Prior to that, Mr Kuah has had a distinguished international career 

working in London, Hong Kong, Australia and Singapore. He had previously been a Senior Management 

Executive of PSA International Pte Ltd, a 100% subsidiary of Temasek Holdings which has extensive port 

interests around the world.  He also served as CFO for Singapore Technologies Engineering, a major listed 

ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ {ƛƴƎŀǇƻǊŜ {ǘƻŎƪ 9ȄŎƘŀƴƎŜ όά{D·έύΣ ŀƭǎƻ ƳŀƧƻǊƛǘȅ-owned by Temasek Holdings.  

 

Mr Peter Wallace  Non-Executive Director  

Qualifications  Mr Wallace is a Senior Fellow of the Financial Services Institute of Australia, a Fellow of the Australian Institute 

of Company Directors, and an Associate Fellow of the Australian Institute of Management. 

 

Experience  Mr Wallace has spent some 45 years in the Financial Services industry with experience gained in all aspects of 

financing with particular involvement in corporate and international funding. Past Executive positions held 

include Chief Credit Officer and Chief Operating Officer roles in a major regional Bank and Head of Corporate 

WA for Bell Potter Securities Ltd, one of Australia's largest stockbroking houses. He has directed capital raising 

for several large publicly listed companies as well as provided a variety of corporate advisory services to a wide 

range of companies, both private and publicly owned. Mr Wallace has held a number of public and private 

company Board positions including past Directorships in Decmil Engineering Ltd, RuralAus Investments Ltd, 

Tethyan Copper Ltd and HBF Health Ltd and is a serving Non-Executive Director Katana Investments Ltd and 

Goldfields Money Ltd. 

 

Mr Dominic Siu  Non-Executive Director 

Qualifications  Mr Siu graduated with a Bachelor of Civil and Structural Engineering (Honours) degree and is a Chartered 

Accountant qualified in the UK. 

   

Experience  Mr Siu is the Group CFO of MTQ Corporation Limited.  He is an experienced senior finance manager and has 

held senior finance positions in Greater China and South East Asia regions. 

   

Mr Robin King  Executive Director 

Qualifications  Mr King holds a Masters of Business Administration and a Bachelor of Civil Engineering (First Class Honours). 

   

Experience  Mr King has worked in the international oil and gas industry since 1982, focusing mainly in the offshore and 

subsea sectors. Prior to being appointed CEO at Neptune in 2010, Mr King was the CEO of Technip Subsea 7 

Asia Pacific, responsible for operations throughout Oceania and South East Asia. 

   

Company Secretary  

 

Mr Ian Hobson was appointed Company Secretary on 26 March 2015.  Mr Hobson is a Fellow Chartered Accountant and Chartered SecǊŜǘŀǊȅ ǿƛǘƘ ƻǾŜǊ ол ȅŜŀǊǎΩ 

experience in various company secretary and finance roles.  He is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants, the Governance Institute of Australia and 

the Australian Institute of Company Directors. 
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5Lw9/¢hw{Ω Lb¢9w9{¢{  

     

The relevant interest of each Director in the shares and options issued by the Company at the date of this report is as follows: 

      Ordinary Shares Options over Ordinary Shares 

Mr Boon Wee Kuah (*)  - - 

Mr Dominic Siu (*)  - - 

Mr Peter Wallace  - - 

Mr Robin King  - - 

 
The relevant interest of each Director in the shares and options issued by MTQ Corporation Limited (related body corporate) at the date of this report is as 

follows: 

      Ordinary Shares Options over Ordinary Shares 

Mr Boon Wee Kuah (*)  4,522,322 - 

Mr Dominic Siu (*)    346,821 - 

Robin King      82,398 - 

 

(*) Mr Boon Wee Kuah is associated with Blossomvale Investments Pte Ltd, which is the controlling entity of Neptune.  

(*) Mr Dominic Siu is associated with Blossomvale Investments Pte Ltd, which is the controlling entity of Neptune.  

 
DIVIDENDS PAID OR PROPOSED  

 

Dividends paid in the year: Cents $000 

Interim for the year on ordinary shares  

8 

 

4,915 

Final for the year on ordinary shares  Nil - 

 

  

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 

 

The principal activities of the Consolidated Group comprises: commercial diving services; hydrographic surveying, positioning and geophysical services; NDT, 

inspection and mechanical repair services; pipeline and subsea structure stabilisation and grouting; ROV services; subsea and pipeline engineering; manufacturing, 

assembly and testing services and dry underwater welding using the proprietary patented NEPSYS® technology. 

 

bŜǇǘǳƴŜΩǎ ǇǊƛƳŀǊȅ ŦƻŎǳǎ ƛǎ ǘƘŜ ƛƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ ƻƛƭ ŀƴŘ ƎŀǎΣ ƳŀǊƛƴŜ ŀƴŘ ǊŜƴŜǿŀōƭŜ ŜƴŜǊƎȅ ƻŦŦǎƘƻǊŜ ƛƴŘǳǎǘǊƛŜǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ key regions of Australia, Asia, and the UK.  

 

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW 

 

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS 

 

Neptune reported a net loss after tax of $7.092 million for the financial year ending 31 March 2016, this included an after tax $6.620 million ($6.919 million before 

tax) write down of the Group ROV assets. Annual revenue of $118.604 million was down compare to the previous year, due to challenging market conditions which 

ƛƳǇŀŎǘŜŘ bŜǇǘǳƴŜΩǎ ǎŜŎƻƴŘ ƘŀƭŦ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜΦ 

 

The Group recorded a positive operating cash flow during the year of $3.788 million, ending with $14.165 million in cash and minimal interest bearing debt of 

$0.085 million at year end.  

 

The challenging market conditions which continued in the global oil and gas industry had a significant impact on the /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǊŜǎǳƭǘs, with delays to 

non-ŜǎǎŜƴǘƛŀƭ ǇǊƻƧŜŎǘǎ ŀƴŘ ŎƭƛŜƴǘ ǊŜŘǳŎǘƛƻƴǎ ƻƴ ŎŀǇƛǘŀƭ ŜȄǇŜƴŘƛǘǳǊŜ ŎƻƳƳƻƴ ŀŎǊƻǎǎ ŜŀŎƘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƴƎ ǊŜƎƛƻƴǎΦ  

 

Neptune also had various one off items during the period, including of note: 

 

¶ ²ǊƛǘŜ Řƻǿƴ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ wŜƳƻǘŜŘ hperated Vehicles (ROV) assets as mentioned above; 

¶ Relocation expenses and asset write offs associated with the relocation into the combined facility in Western Australia; 

¶ Costs associated with headcount reduction; and 

¶ Various items of equipment being subject to insurance claims, resulting in asset write offs and the subsequent receipt of insurance proceeds. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2016 FINANCIAL REPORT   5Lw9/¢hw{Ω w9thw¢ 

 

NEPTUNE MARINE SERVICES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES   7 

ABN: 76 105 665 843 

OFFSHORE SERVICES 

 

The Offshore Services division reported revenues totalling $91.980 million for the twelve month period ended 31 March 2016. 

 

The Offshore Services division was awarded a five year offshore diving and subsea inspection contract by Oil Search in Papua New Guinea. The contract commenced 

in April 2015 and works are expected to provide ongoing revenue into the coming financial period and beyond. To date, ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ 5ƛǾƛƴƎΣ {ǳǊǾŜȅΣ 9ƴƎƛƴŜŜǊƛƴƎ 

and Asset Integrity service lines have all been involved. 

 

The Survey service line was awarded and subsequently successfully completed its first Autonomous Underwater Vehicle (AUV) contract for Woodside on the North 

West Shelf. As a new capability for Neptune, the delivery of AUV services will be a key target moving forward. In addition to this, the service line continued 

operations on two long term contracts awarded in 2015.  

 

The Diving service line was awarded a Master Services Agreement (MSA) from Chevron Australia for facilities maintenance on Barrow Island. Two initial scopes of 

ǿƻǊƪ ŎƻƳƳŜƴŎŜŘ ǳƴŘŜǊ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƴǘǊŀŎǘ ŀƴŘ ǘƘƛǎ ƳŀǊƪŜŘ bŜǇǘǳƴŜΩǎ ŦƛŦǘƘ Ŏƻƴǘƛƴǳƻǳǎ ȅŜŀǊ ƻŦ ǿƻǊƪ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ƛǎƭŀƴŘΦ 

 

The Stabilisation service line delivered an upbeat performance in both Australia and South East Asia, highlighted by continued works on the Inpex operated Ichthys 

oil and gas field, numerous contracts in South East Asia and an increase in work in the Middle East.  

 

The ROV service line in South East Asia had moderate improvements in the utilisation of ROVs across their fleet, however, globally utilisation rates were slightly 

down on the previous period and the final quarter was the hardest hit. In the UK, the service line formalised an agreement with Gardline Marine Sciences for the 

ǇŜǊƳŀƴŜƴǘ ƛƴǎǘŀƭƭŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ƻƴŜ ƻŦ bŜǇǘǳƴŜΩǎ wh±Ωǎ ƻƴ-board the Gardline vessel, MV Kommander. 

 

The Asset Integrity service line was awarded a three year MSA for the provision of ongoing maintenance and repair services for a key client, operating within the 

Joint Development Petroleum Area (JDPA). The business had previously held a similar contract with the client. 

 

Other operational highlights included: 

 

¶ The award of a geophysical and light geotechnical survey contract by Shell Australia for works on the Crux oil field; 

¶ The completion of a saturation diving manning contract for Technip Australia to assist with spool installation; 

¶ Continued works with Quadrant Energy including air diving services, grouting and freespan correction; and 

¶ Further awarded works for Asset Integrity in Darwin on the Ichthys construction site.  

 

 

ENGINEERING SERVICES 

 

The Engineering Services division reported revenues of $26.501 million for the period ended 31 March 2016. 

 

In the UK, the Engineering service line was awarded an extension to an ongoing engineering framework agreement with BP. This followed the delivery of further 

wellhead bracing systems to BP during the period and an order for an eighth unit. Furthermore, the success with which the Engineering and Manufacturing, 

Assembly and Testing (MAT) businesses have continued to deliver their bespoke technical solutions is driving a proposed expansion of the Engineering service line 

into new geographical areas. 

 

The NEPSYS® team undertook preparatory works for two international projects. One of which entered the offshore phase at year end with works continuing into 

the new financial year. 

 

The Manufacturing, Testing and Assembly business was awarded a contract for 22 subsea tree frames by a UK client for a major project in Australia.  

 

The Australian Engineering service line continued to provide engineering and technical support to the Australian based businesses including the extensive support 

of all NEPSYS® activities.   

 

Other operational highlights included: 

 

¶ The performance of NDT services internally in MAT rather than outsourcing to external third parties, as a part of a cost saving initiative; and 

¶ CǳǊǘƘŜǊ ŘŜǎƛƎƴΣ ƳŀƴǳŦŀŎǘǳǊƛƴƎΣ ǘŜǎǘƛƴƎ ŀƴŘ ŀǎǎŜƳōƭȅ ǿƻǊƪǎ ƻƴ .tΩǎ vǳŀŘ нлп ǇǊƻƧŜŎǘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ bƻǊǘƘ {ŜŀΦ 
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OPERATING RESULTS 

 

The consolidated net loss after tax for the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 was $7.092 million (year ended 31 March 2015: $2.820 million profit).  

 

FINANCIAL POSITION 

 

The net assets of the consolidated Group have decreased by $11.810 million to $72.799 million at 31 March 2016 ($84.609 million as at 31 March 2015). Included 

within net assets is an amount of $13.111 million (2015: $13.255 million) relating to goodwill. Net tangible assets were $58.551 million compared to $69.862 

million at 31 March 2015. 

 

Debt Position 

As at 31 March 2016, the Company had interest bearing debts of $0.115 million (2015: $0.326 million) which consists of equipment leasing, hire purchase 

commitments and other finance leases. Interest-bearing debt as a percentage of equity was 0.12% (2015: 0.38%). 

 

Cash and Liquidity 

As at 31 March 2016, cash and cash equivalents was $14.165 million (2015: $17.594 million). At 31 March 2016, the working capital position was $33.648 million 

(31 March 2015: $33.137 million). This equates to a current ratio (current assets / current liabilities) of 2.8 (2015: 2.4). 

 

Goodwill Impairment 

No impairment was recognised during the year ended 31 March 2016. 

 

Significant Changes in State of Affairs 

There were no significant changes in state affairs during the year. 

 

Events After the Reporting Period 

Subsequent to year end, Neptune signed a 12-month vessel charter for the MV Offshore Guardian. Neptune expects to take delivery of the vessel in late July 2016 

and the agreement includes various extension options. 

 

Future Development, Prospects and Business Strategy 

Neptune will focus on key areas of business improvement, managing its cost base and targeting new areas for growth as the challenging climate of the global oil 

and gas industry continues into FY 2017. Key strategies for achieving this include: 

 

¶ Greater coordination of integrated business development and improved key customer management; 

¶ Continued focus on cost management and cost efficiencies; 

¶ Key focus on geographical expansion within identified growth regions; 

¶ Continue with partnering approach for key opportunities; 

¶ Emphasis on marketing technical capabilities and niche services; and 

¶ Continued development of Behavioural Based Safety through the group to enhance health and safety performance. 

 

Environmental Requirements and Performance 

bŜǇǘǳƴŜΩǎ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴǎ ŀǊŜ ǎǳōƧŜŎǘ ǘƻ ōƻǘƘ /ƻƳƳƻƴǿŜŀƭǘƘ ŀƴŘ {ǘŀǘŜ ŜƴǾƛǊƻƴƳŜƴǘŀƭ ƭŜƎƛǎƭŀǘƛƻƴΦ bŜǇǘǳƴŜΩǎ .ƻŀǊŘ ōŜƭƛŜǾŜǎ ǘƘŀǘ bŜǇǘune has the appropriate 

management systems in place to ensure its statutory obligations are met and is not aware of any breach of these obligations. 
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REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED)  
 

This Remuneration Report for the year ended 31 March 2016 outlines the remuneration arrangements of the Company and the Group in accordance with the 

requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 (The Act) and its regulations. This information has been audited as required by section 308(3C) of the Act. 

 

This report details the nature and amount of remuneration under the current remuneration framework for each director of the CompanyΣ ŀǎ ǿŜƭƭ ŀǎ ŦƻǊ ƻǘƘŜǊ άYŜȅ 

aŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ tŜǊǎƻƴƴŜƭέ όYatύ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇ. The format of this report aligns with the June 2012 recommendations of the Australian Institute of Company 

Directors. 

 

For the purpose of this report, the definition of KMP aligns with that of the Accounting Standards, namely: those persons having authority and responsibility for 

planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, either directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of that entity. 

 

Governance 

In determining the remuneration of its Key Management Personnel (KMP), Neptune has established the Remuneration Committee. The Committee recommends 

to the Board appropriate remuneration policies and practices including the specific remuneration (including base pay, incentive payments, equity awards, 

superannuation, retirement rights, termination payments, services contracts) to the CEO and other KMP. The proceedings of each Remuneration Committee 

meeting are reported directly to the Board.  

 

Diversity at Neptune Marine Services  

The Group recognises the value contributed to the organisation by employing people with varying skills, cultural backgrounds, ethnicity and experience. As an 

international operation, Neptune understands the value of having a culturally diverse workforce capable of operating in various countries.  The Company believes 

its diverse workforce is a key to its continued growth, improved productivity and performance. 

 

We actively value and embrace the diversity of our employees and are committed to creating an inclusive workplace where everyone is treated equally and fairly, 

and where discrimination, harassment and inequity are not tolerated. While the Company is committed to fostering diversity at all levels, diversity has been and 

continues to be a priority for the Group. 

 

To this end, the Group supports the recommendations contained in the ASX Corporate Governance Principles and Recommendations. The Group has established 

ŀ ŘƛǾŜǊǎƛǘȅ ǇƻƭƛŎȅ ƻǳǘƭƛƴƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ .ƻŀǊŘΩǎ ǾƛŜǿǎ ŦƻǊ ŀŎƘƛŜǾƛƴƎ ŘƛǾŜǊǎƛǘȅ. This is reviewed regularly to measure the progress towards achieving those policy objectives. 

¢ƘŜ ŘƛǾŜǊǎƛǘȅ ǇƻƭƛŎȅ ƛǎ ŀǾŀƛƭŀōƭŜ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǇƻƭƛŎƛŜǎ ǎŜŎǘƛƻƴ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ǿŜōǎƛǘŜΦ  bŜǇǘǳƴŜ ƛǎ ŎƻƴǘƛƴǳƛƴƎ ǘƻ ǿƻǊƪ ǘƻǿŀǊŘǎ ŀŎƘƛeving improved outcomes in line with 

our policy. 

 

Remuneration Philosophy and Policy 

(i) Non-Executive Director remuneration  

The Board seeks to set aggregate remuneration at a level that provides the Company with the ability to attract and retain Directors of a high calibre, whilst incurring 

a cost that is acceptable to shareholders. 

 

The amount of aggregate remuneration sought to be approved by shareholders and the fee structure is reviewed regularly against fees paid to Non-Executive 

Directors (NEDs) of comparable companies. The Board considers advice from external consultants when undertaking the review process. As there was no increase 

in fees in 2016, Neptune did not engage any external consultants during the period. 

 

¢ƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ Ŏƻƴǎǘƛǘǳǘƛƻƴ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ !{· ƭƛǎǘƛƴƎ ǊǳƭŜǎ ǎǇŜŎƛŦȅ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜ b95 fee pool shall be determined from time to time by a general meeting. The latest 

determination was at the 2007 Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 19 November 2007 when shareholders approved an aggregate fee pool of $600,000, such 

fees to be allocated to the Directors as the Board of Directors may determine.  Total fees paid out of this pool for period to 31 March 2016, including superannuation 

and committee fees, was $303,075.  

 

(ii) Executive remuneration 

The remuneration policy at Neptune is based on the philosophy of aligning Executive remuneration with shareholder and business objectives. This is achieved by 

providing a fixed remuneration component in combination with specific short-term and long-term incentives that are based on key performance areas that directly 

impact on the financial results of the consolidated Group. 

 

The Board believes the remuneration policy is both appropriate and effective in its ability to attract and retain high calibre Executives to manage the consolidated 

Group. 

 

The remuneration structure for key Executives is based on a number of factors, including: 

 

¶ Experience of the individual concerned; 

¶ Overall company performance; and  

¶ Continuity of service (where relevant for various reward incentives). 

 

 

Key Management Personnel are also remunerated based on achievement of short and long term objectives considered important to the success of the Company.  

All remuneration paid to key Executives is valued at the cost to the Company and is expensed. Where relevant, shares allocated to key Executives are valued as 

the difference between the market price of those shares and the amount paid by the Executives.  
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Remuneration Structure 

(i)  Non-Executive Directors 

¢ƘŜ ǊŜƳǳƴŜǊŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ b95ǎ Ŏƻƴǎƛǎǘǎ ƻŦ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎΩ ŦŜŜǎ ŀƴŘ /ƻƳƳƛǘǘŜŜ ŦŜŜǎΦ b95ǎ Řƻ ƴƻǘ ǊŜceive retirement benefits, nor do they participate in any incentive 

programs. 

 

Each NED, except Board Chairman, receives a base cash fee of $70,000 plus superannuation for being a Director of the Group, while the Board Chairman receives 

a base cash fee of $140,000. An additional fee of $7,500 to $15,000 (depending on the function of the committee) plus superannuation is paid if the Director 

(except for the Board Chairman) is a Chair of a Board Committee. The payment of additional fees for serving on a committee recognises the additional time 

commitment required by NEDs who serve on sub-committees. 

 

(ii) Executive 

Neptune is committed to ensuring its remuneration structures are appropriately aligned with shareholder value creation over the short and long term and focuses 

on motivating, rewarding and retaining key Executives.  Our structures aim to link performance and reward while taking into account challenges and market forces 

that companies such as Neptune are confronted with when faced with cyclical and economic forces.   

 

The key initiatives under this review were: 

 

¶ Benchmarking Executive remuneration to determine where the roles were currently positioned, looking at base salary, short-term incentives and long-

term incentives. 

¶ Segmentation of employees into 3 key groupings to better tailor remuneration packages for specific groups of employees 

o Segment 1 - individuals within Neptune who are best able to influence the long-term strategy and direction of the organisation  

o Segment 2 ς key managers across the organisation who have greater influence over business unit outcomes rather than company-wide 

outcomes 

o Segment 3 ς all other employees 

¶ Creating a Total Annual Remuneration Framework for Segment 1 and 2 employees. 

¶ Design and implementation of a new equity-based long-term incentive plan. 

 

bŜǇǘǳƴŜΩǎ ǊŜƳǳƴŜǊŀǘƛƻƴ ǎǘǊŀǘŜƎȅ ǊŜŎƻƎƴƛǎŜǎ ŀƴŘ ǊŜǿŀǊŘǎ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ ƛƴ ŀ ǿŀȅ ǘƘŀǘ is consistent with general practices in the markets in which the Group 

ƻǇŜǊŀǘŜǎΦ  ¢ƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ǊŜƳǳƴŜǊŀǘƛƻƴ ǇƘƛƭƻǎƻǇƘȅ ƛǎ ŦƻŎǳǎŜŘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ŦƻƭƭƻǿƛƴƎ ƪŜȅ ǇǊƛƴŎƛǇƭŜǎΥ 

 

¶ Alignment to sustainable long-term value creation 

¶ Attraction and retention of highly skilled employees 

¶ Competitiveness within the global markets in which the company operates 

¶ Alignment through high levels of equity ownership 

¶ High rewards for true outperformance 

¶ Simple and transparent remuneration framework 

¶ Consistent remuneration framework across the organisation 

 

As a result of these reviews the Board adopted the Executive Long Term Incentive Plan (LTI Plan) and the Executive Short Term Incentive Plan (STI Plan).  

 

The objective of the LTI Plan is to reward performance that achieves long tŜǊƳ ƎǊƻǿǘƘ ƛƴ ǎƘŀǊŜƘƻƭŘŜǊ ǾŀƭǳŜΦ ¢ƘŜ ƻōƧŜŎǘƛǾŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ {¢L tƭŀƴ ƛǎ ǘƻ ǊŜǿŀǊŘ bŜǇǘǳƴŜΩǎ 

Executives for occupational safety & health targets, continued cost savings, efficiencies, growth in revenues, margin control, and organisational initiatives.  Both 

plans seek to reward and incentivise by aligning the interests of Executives with those of shareholders, and are intended to form part of the overall remuneration 

package of the Executive.  

 

¢ƘŜ /9hΩǎ ǊŜƳǳƴŜǊŀǘƛƻƴ ƳƛȄ ŎƻƳǇǊƛǎŜǎΥ 

 

Fixed Element 

Salary and allowances - 34% remuneration as a proportion of total remuneration. 

 

At Risk Element 

¦Ǉ ǘƻ псΦр҈ ōŀǎŜŘ ƻƴ ŀŎƘƛŜǾŜƳŜƴǘ ƻŦ ǎƘƻǊǘ ǘŜǊƳ YtLΩǎ ŀƴŘ ǇǊƻŦƛǘ ƻǳǘŎƻƳŜǎ ό{¢LύΤ ŀƴŘ 

Up to 19.5% long term incentives (LTI) based on specific performance outcomes. 

 

9ȄŜŎǳǘƛǾŜǎΩ ǊŜƳǳƴŜǊŀǘƛƻƴ ƳƛȄ ǊŀƴƎŜǎ ŦǊƻƳ рл҈ ŦƛȄŜŘ ǊŜƳǳƴŜǊŀǘƛƻƴ ŀǎ ŀ ǇǊƻǇƻǊǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ǘƻǘŀƭ ǊŜƳǳƴŜǊŀǘƛƻƴΣ ǳǇ ǘƻ нр҈ {¢L ōŀǎŜŘ ƻƴ YtLΩǎ ŀƴŘ н5% based on LTI 

performance outcomes. In addition, Executives are eligible for a further discretionary bonus approved by the Board in case of significant over performance. 

  

The employment conditions of the Chief Executive Officer, Robin King and other key Executives are formalised in contracts of employment. The contracts for 

service between the Company and Executives are on a continuing, permanent basis. Upon retirement, Executives are paid employee benefit entitlements accrued 

to the date of retirement. Subject to the terms and conditions of the employment contracts, any performance right or option that has not vested or been exercised 

before or on the date of termination will subsequently lapse. 
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Directors, Executives and employees receive superannuation contributions. The contribution currently stands at 9.5% however some individuals choose to sacrifice 

a portion of their salary in order to increase contributions towards superannuation. 

 

Total Remuneration Components 

For FY 16 the total annual remuneration structure for Segment 1 and 2 employees was as per the below table 
 
Segment 1 ς CEO, COO & CFO 
 
 

   
 
 
 
 
 
Segment 2 ς Business Unit managers, Functional heads, other key employees 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reward Mix: The CEO will have over 66% of his total annual remuneration at-risk (i.e. subject to performance) while other Segment 1 employees will have between 

40% and 50% of their total annual remuneration at-risk.  For Segment 2 employees, approximately 30% of their total annual remuneration will be at-risk.  This 

ǎǘǊǳŎǘǳǊŜ ŜƴǎǳǊŜǎ ǘƘŀǘ ŀ ǎƛƎƴƛŦƛŎŀƴǘ ǇƻǊǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ŀƴ ŜƳǇƭƻȅŜŜΩǎ ǊŜƳǳƴŜǊŀǘƛƻƴ ƛǎ ŘƛǊŜŎǘƭȅ ƭƛƴƪŜŘ ǘƻ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜΦ  
 
Fixed Remuneration: !ƴ ŜƳǇƭƻȅŜŜΩǎ ŦƛȄŜŘ ǊŜƳǳƴŜǊŀǘƛƻƴ ƛǎ ōŀǎŜŘ ƻƴ ƳŀǊƪŜǘ ōŜƴŎƘƳŀǊƪƛƴƎ ǘƻ ŜƴǎǳǊŜ the pay is commensurate with the market in which the Group 

operates.  The market benchmarking uses data obtained from similar sized ASX listed companies which operate in the mining/resources services sector and 

international listed companies with which Neptune competes for projects.  In setting remuneration, consideration is given to the experience, skills and knowledge 

of role incumbents.  Fixed remuneration is comprised of base salary, superannuation, other benefits and the cost of Fringe Benefits Tax, and is designed to reward 

άŎƻƳŜ-to-ǿƻǊƪέ ōŜƘŀǾƛƻǳǊǎΣ ǾŀƭǳŜǎ ŀƴŘ ŀŎǘƛǾƛǘƛŜǎ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜŘ ǘƻ ŦǳƭŦƛƭ ƛƴŘƛǾƛŘǳŀƭǎΩ Ƨƻō ŘŜǎŎǊƛǇǘƛƻƴΦ 
 
Short-term Incentives (STI): STI rewards reflect both individual and business performance over the relevant financial period through the use of individual 

performance scorecards.  Each employee will have a target STI expressed as a percentage of their base salary.  Payment of the ƛƴŘƛǾƛŘǳŀƭΩǎ ǘŀǊƎŜǘ {¢L ƛǎ ŘŜǇŜƴŘŜƴǘ 

on performance against their scorecard, which measures performance against the following key performance drivers: 

 

¶ Financial Performance ς based directly on financial performance against targets 

¶ hŎŎǳǇŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ IŜŀƭǘƘΣ {ŀŦŜǘȅ ŀƴŘ 9ƴǾƛǊƻƴƳŜƴǘ όǘȅǇƛŎŀƭ YtLΩǎ ŀǊŜ ōŀǎŜŘ ŀǊƻǳƴŘ ŜȄŎŜƭƭŜƴŎŜ ƛƴ ŀŎƘƛŜǾƛƴƎ ƻǾŜǊŀƭƭ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴce on safety, Executive 

participation in safety activities and compliance with laws) 

¶ IǳƳŀƴ wŜǎƻǳǊŎŜǎ aŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ όǘȅǇƛŎŀƭ YtLΩǎ ŀǊŜ ƳŜŀǎǳǊŜƳŜƴǘǎ ƻŦ ǘǳǊƴƻǾŜǊΣ ǎǘŀŦŦ Ŏƻǎǘǎ ŀƴŘ ŜƳǇƭƻȅŜŜ ŘƛǎǇǳǘŜǎύ 

¶ hǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ 9ŦŦŜŎǘƛǾŜƴŜǎǎ όǘȅǇƛŎŀƭ YtLΩǎ ŀǊŜ ǎǳŎŎŜǎǎŦǳƭ ŎƻƳǇƭŜǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ special projects, identification of cost savings, improvements in operating systems, 

debtors collection, compliance with laws etc.) 

 

Long-term Incentive (LTI): Long Term Incentives are now offered as a share plan for executives and some key employees. Segment 1 employees are offered a 

higher percentage of shares. 

 

MTQ Share Plan  

a¢v /ƻǊǇƻǊŀǘƛƻƴ [ƛƳƛǘŜŘ όάa¢vέύΣ bŜǇǘǳƴŜΩǎ ǳƭǘƛƳŀǘŜ ǇŀǊŜƴǘ ŜƴǘƛǘȅΣ operates a compensation scheme which awards fully paid shares to the participants of the 

scheme, when and after pre-determined performance conditions are met. The purpose of the scheme is to motivate and retain Group employees including 

employees of subsidiary companies. 

 

bŜǇǘǳƴŜΩǎ {ŜƎƳŜƴǘ м ŜƳǇƭƻȅŜŜǎ ό/9hΣ /hh ŀƴŘ /Chύ ŀǊŜ ǇŀǊǘƛŎƛǇŀƴǘǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǎŎƘŜƳŜΦ hǘƘŜǊ ŜƳǇƭƻȅŜŜǎ ŀǊŜ ŀƭǎƻ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǎŎƘeme. Under the scheme the 

participants attract an award based on a percentage of annual base salary.  

 

For the 2014 and 2015 MTQ share plan that has been awarded, the monetary value has been determined by the Remuneration Committee after assessing whether 

the performance targets have been satisfied. For the 2016 MTQ share plan value that has been yet to be awarded, the monetary value has been estimated based 

on 60% of the maximum award size 

 

The targets set for the Performance Year 2015/2016 (from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016) are: 

a) Individual performance rating of at least a Grade B in the annual appraisal exercise to be eligible for the award of shares; 

b) DǊƻǳǇ 9ŀǊƴƛƴƎǎ tŜǊ {ƘŀǊŜ ƳŜŜǘǎ ǘƘŜ ǘŀǊƎŜǘ ǎŜǘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ōǳŘƎŜǘΤ and  

c) Growth of MTQ Share Price relative to the market benchmark (Straits Times Index). 

 

Fixed 
Short-term 

Incentive 

Long Term 

Incentive 

Total 

Remuneration 

Equity Based Cash Based 

Fixed 
Short-term 

Incentive 

Long Term 

Incentive 

Total 

Remuneration 

Equity Based Cash Based 
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Issuance of shares to Neptune executives under the MTQ Share Plan will reflect the performance of Neptune as part of the MTQ Group. Performance exceeding 

the set targets shall attract an increase of the award size. Performance short of the set targets shall attract a decrease. At the end of the Performance Year, each 

target is evaluated by the Remuneration Committee. Remuneration Committee then determines if performance targets have been satisfied and if so the extent 

to which they have been satisfied. The monetary value to be awarded are determined and converted to a number of MTQ ordinary shares based on the ruling 

market price which is defined as the closing market price after the financial year announcement. The number of shares as determined is the number of shares 

awarded for the Performance Year. The amount of MTQ Shares awarded shall be delivered in three equal tranches at the end of the Performance Year, year 1, 

year 2 and year 3 on 1 September. The vesting date for the first instalment of the shares awarded for Performance Year 2014/2015 is August 2015. The employees 

must still be employed by the company at these dates to receive the shares. 

 

Chief Executive Officer Service Agreement ς Mr Robin King 

Under his contract, the CEO is entitled to the following conditions: if the Company terminates the agreement for any reason other than pursuant to specified 

circumstances, including offences involving fraud or dishonesty or committal of a serious or persistent breach of the agreement which was incapable of satisfactory 

remedy, the Company is required to pay to the CEO all remuneration accrued up to and including the date of termination, payment in lieu of annual leave and 

long service leave to which he is entitled at the date of termination, and an amount equal to 12 months base salary plus any accrued performance entitlements. 

 

¢ƘŜ /9hΩǎ ŎǳǊǊŜƴǘ ŎŀǎƘ ǎŀƭŀǊȅ ŀǘ ǘƘŜ ŘŀǘŜ ƻŦ ǘƘƛǎ ǊŜǇƻǊǘ ƛǎ Ϸр52,879 per annum with an additional $40,000 per annum car allowance. The Remuneration Committee 

determines the proportion of fixed and variable compensation for each Key Management Personnel. 

 

Employment Contracts 

The key terms and conditions of the current Executive and Executive service agreements are outlined below: 

 

Executives Position 
Contract 

Duration 

Non-Solicitation 

Clauses 

Notice Periods based on Current Base 

Salary 

Mr Robin King Chief Executive Officer Unlimited Up to 12 months 
12 months by Neptune, 6 months by 

the Executive 

Mr Vincent Allegre Chief Operating Officer Unlimited Up to 12 months 
6 months by Neptune, 4 months by the 

Executive 

Mrs Ashley Muirhead Chief Financial Officer Unlimited Up to 12 months 
6 months by Neptune, 3 months by the 

Executive 

 

Company Performance and the Link to Remuneration 

(i) Short Term Incentive (STI) 

For the CEO, COO and CFO, 50% of their STI is directly linked to measures of overall profit.  For other Executives, up to 50% of their STI relates to profit although 

this may be a mix of the profitability of the business or region under their direction and the overall Company performance.  The ability to qualify for this incentive 

depends upon whether Neptune achieves profit targets as set by the Board.   

 

(ii) Long Term Incentive (LTI) 

As previously described, Neptune offers a share plan as a Long Term Incentive to executives and employees. 
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Remuneration Outcomes 
The remuneration received by KMP and NEDS during the 2016 financial period is summarised in the below table.   
 

 Short-Term Benefits 
Post-Employment 

Benefits 
Share-Based 

Payment 
Total 

Proportion of 
Remuneration Based 
on Performance % 

2016 
Cash, Salary & Fees $ 

 
Bonus 

$ 

Non - Cash 
Benefit1 

$ 

Other2 
$ 

Superannuation 
$ 

LTI Plan 
$ 

$  

         

Directors         

Mr Boon Wee Kuah  140,0003 - - - - - 140,000 0% 

Mr Dominic Siu 70,0003 - - - - - 70,000 0% 

Mr Peter Wallace 85,000 - - - 8,075 - 93,075 0% 

Mr Robin King 552,879 29,5294 1,097 40,000 77,689 19,988 721,182 7% 

         

 847,879 29,529 1,097 40,000 85,764 19,988 1,024,257  

Key Management Personnel (KMP)         

Mr Vincent Allegre 407,460 10,2264 1,097 30,000 49,378 7,383 505,594 4% 

Mrs Ashley Muirhead 212,800 17,2654 1,097 25,000 26,602 2,261 285,025 5% 

 620,260 27,491 2,194 55,000 75,980 9,644 790,619  

 1,468,139 57,020 3,291 95,000 161,744 29,632 1,814,876 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                                                 
1 Car park benefits for the year ended 31 March 2016. 

2 Other includes vehicle allowances. 

3 Fees are paid to Blossomvale Investments Pte Ltd 

4
Represents a 12 month accrual based on full year entitlements. The accrued amounts are subject to final approval, ǿƛǘƘ ƻǳǘŎƻƳŜǎ ōŀǎŜŘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ǎǳŎŎŜǎǎ ƛƴ ƳŜŜǘƛƴƎ YŜȅ tŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ LƴŘƛŎŀǘƻǊǎ όYtLΩǎύΦ 
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 Short-Term Benefits 
Post-Employment 

Benefits 
Share-Based 

Payment 
Total 

Proportion of 
Remuneration Based 
on Performance % 

2015 
Cash, Salary & Fees 

$ 
 

Cash Bonus 
$ 

Non - Cash 
Benefit5 

$ 

Other6 
$ 

Superannuation 
$ 

LTI Plan 
$ 

$  

         

Directors         

Mr Boon Wee Kuah  140,0007 - - - - - 140,000 0% 

Mr Dominic Siu 70,0007 - - - - - 70,000 0% 

Mr Peter Wallace 85,000 - - - 8,022 - 93,022 0% 

Mr Robin King 562,250 230,2818 11,203 40,000 93,893 389,138 1,326,765 47% 

         

 857,250 230,281 11,203 40,000 101,915 389,138 1,629,787  

Key Management Personnel (KMP)         

Mr Vincent Allegre 411,752 84,8568 11,203 30,000 54,965 89,586 682,362 26% 

Mrs Ashley Muirhead9 201,152 31,5168 10,391 25,000 24,645 4,984 297,688 12% 

 612,904 116,372 21,594 55,000 79,610 94,570 980,050  

 1,470,154 346,653 32,797 95,000 181,525 483,708 2,609,837 
 

                                                                                 
5 Car park benefits for the year ended 31 March 2015 

6 Other includes vehicle allowances. 

7 Fees are paid to Blossomvale Investments Pte Ltd 
8 Represents a 12 month accrual based on full year entitlements. The accrued amounts are subject to final approval, with outcomes based on the success in meeǘƛƴƎ YŜȅ tŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ LƴŘƛŎŀǘƻǊǎ όYtLΩǎύΦ 

9 There has been no change in the /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ /Ch Ǉƻǎƛǘƛƻƴ ōŜǘǿŜŜƴ ǘƘŜ ǇŜǊƛƻŘǎΦ  
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Shareholdings of KMP 

 

The relevant interest of each KMP in the shares and options issued by the Company as at 31 March 2016 is as follows: 

 Ordinary Shares Options over Ordinary Shares 

Mr Boon Wee Kuah  - - 

Mr Dominic Siu  - - 

Mr Peter Wallace  - - 

Mr Robin King  - - 

Mr Vincent Allegre  - - 

Mrs Ashley Muirhead  - - 

 

Options Granted as Part of Remuneration for the year Ended 31 March 2016 

In 2016, no options were granted. No shares were issued to KMPs from the exercise of options during the period. 

 

Loans to KMP and their related parties  

 

There were no loans issued to KMP and their related parties during the financial period ending 31 March 2016. 

 

Other transactions and balances with KMP and their related parties 

 

There were no other transactions with KMP and their related parties during the financial period ending 31 March 2016. 

 

 

END OF AUDITED REMUNERATION REPORT 
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MEETING OF DIRECTORS 

 

During the financial period, five meetings of Directors (including Committees of Directors) were held. Attendances by each Director during the period were as 

follows:       

    

Directors' Meetings Audit & Governance Committee Meetings  

    

Number               
Eligible to Attend 

Number           
Attended 

Number                      
Eligible to Attend 

Number           
Attended 

Directors' Names         

Mr Boon Wee Kuah 5 5 - - 

Mr Peter Wallace 5 5 2 2 

Mr Dominic Siu 5 5 2 2 

Mr Robin King 5 5 - - 

     
No remuneration committee meetings were held during the year as no changes were made to remuneration. 

 

Indemnification and Insurance of Directors and Officers         

The Company indemnifies current and former Directors of the Company against all liabilities to another person (other than the Company or a related body 

corporate) that may arise from their position as Directors of the Company and its controlled entities, except where the liability arises out of conduct involving a 

lack of good faith.  The agreement stipulates that the Company will meet to the maximum extent permitted by law, the full amount of any such liabilities, including 

costs and expenses.  

             

The Company has also agreed to indemnify certain senior Executives and Officers for all liabilities to another person (other than the Company or a related body 

corporate) that may arise from their position in the Company and its controlled entities, except where the liability arises out of conduct involving a lack of good 

faith.  The agreement stipulates that the Company will meet to the maximum extent permitted by law, the full amount of any such liabilities, including costs and 

expenses.           

 

The Company paid a premium, during the period in respect of a Directors' and officers' liability insurance policy, insuring the Directors of the Company, the 

Company Secretary, and all Executive Officers of the Company against a liability incurred while acting in the capacity of a Director, Secretary, or Executive Officer 

to the extent permitted by the Corporations Act 2001.  The Directors have not included details of the nature of the liabilities covered or the amount of the premium 

paid in respect of the Directors' and Officers' liability and legal expenses' insurance contracts; as such disclosure is prohibited under the terms of the insurance 

contract.  

 

Indemnification of auditors 

To the extent permitted by law, the Company has agreed to indemnify its auditors, Ernst & Young Australia, as part of the terms of its audit engagement agreement 
against claims by third parties arising from the audit (for an unspecified amount). No payment has been made to indemnify Ernst & Young during or since the 
financial year. 
 

Options               

At the date of this report, the unissued ordinary shares of the Company under option are as follows: 

 Weighted average 

exercise price 

Number under 

option 

Unlisted $15 100,000 

   

 

All options entitle the holder to one ordinary share. 

 

Proceedings on Behalf of Company            
No person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the Company or intervene in any proceedings to which the Company is a party for the 

purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the Company for all or any part of those proceedings.      

        

The Company was not a party to any such proceedings during the period.        

          

Employee Details              

Details of the number of employees in the Consolidated Group as at 31 March 2016 are set out below:  

 2016 2015 

 No. No. 

       Number of employees10 429 425 

                                                                                 
10  Full time employees account for 221 (2015: 294), with the balance made up of part time and casual employees. 
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Non-audit Services             

The following non-audit services were provided by the entity's auditor, Ernst & Young Australia. The directors are satisfied that the provision of non-audit services 
is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the Corporations Act 2001. The nature and scope of each type of non-audit 
service provided means that auditor independence was not compromised.  
 
Ernst & Young Australia received or are due to receive the following amounts for the provision of non-audit services: 
 

        $   

 Tax compliance services  
 

 40,000   

 Special audits as required by jurisdictional regulators      12,500   

     52,500   

        
          
Auditor Independence Declaration            

¢ƘŜ ƭŜŀŘ ŀǳŘƛǘƻǊΩǎ ƛƴŘŜǇŜƴŘŜƴŎŜ ŘŜŎƭŀǊŀǘƛƻƴ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ year ended 31 March 2016 has been received and can be found on page 18 ƻŦ ǘƘŜ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎΩ weport. 

               

Rounding of Amounts             

The Company is an entity to which ASIC Corporation όwƻǳƴŘƛƴƎ ƛƴ CƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ κ5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎΩ wŜǇƻǊǘǎύ LƴǎǘǊǳƳŜƴǘ нлмсκмфм applies. Accordingly, amounts in the financial 

ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ ŀƴŘ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎΩ ǊŜǇƻǊǘ ƘŀǾŜ ōŜŜƴ ǊƻǳƴŘŜŘ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ƴŜŀǊŜǎǘ ǘƘƻǳǎŀƴŘ ŘƻƭƭŀǊǎΦ  

 

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors. 

 

 
 

 

 

Boon Wee Kuah  

Chairman 

 

Dated this 29 day of June 2016  
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DIRECTORS' DECLARATION 

 

In accordance with a resolution of the directors of Neptune Marine Services Limited, I state that: 
 
1. In the opinion of the directors: 
 

(a) the financial statements and notes of the  consolidated entity are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including: 
 

(i) ƎƛǾƛƴƎ ŀ ǘǊǳŜ ŀƴŘ ŦŀƛǊ ǾƛŜǿ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƴǎƻƭƛŘŀǘŜŘ ŜƴǘƛǘȅΩǎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ Ǉƻǎƛǘƛƻƴ ŀǎ ŀǘ ом aŀǊŎƘ нлм6 and of its performance for the year ended on 
that date; and 

 
(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; 

 
(b) the financial statements and notes also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in note 2(b); 
 
(c)  there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable; and 

 
2. This declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to be made to the Directors from the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial 

Officer in accordance with section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 for the financial year ended 31 March 2016. 
 

 

 
 

 

 

Boon Wee Kuah  

Chairman 

 

Dated this 29 day of June 2016
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AUDITORS INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION 

 

N

AUDITORS INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION 
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 

 

          Consolidated 

  

Note 

 2016  
  

2015 

 $000  $000 

      

Revenue  6(a) 118,481  135,415 

Other revenue  6(a) 123  112 

Total revenue   118,604  135,527 

Cost of sales and services rendered   (89,351)  (95,314) 

Gross profit   29,253  40,213 
      

Other income  6(b) 2,591  13 

Marketing expenses   (475)  (456) 

Occupancy expenses   (4,503)  (4,697) 

Corporate, shared services and board expenses  7(d) (3,878)  (4,898) 

Business operating expenses  7(e) (22,190)  (24,823) 

Technical expenses   (266)  (255) 

Finance costs  7(a) (248)  (253) 

Fixed Asset Impairment   (6,919)  - 

Other expenses  7(f) (1,798)  (671) 

Profit or (loss) from continuing operations before income tax  (8,433)  4,173  

Income tax expense  8(a) 1,341  (1,353) 

Net profit or (loss) for the period   (7,092)  2,820 

      

      

Earnings per share      

Basic earnings (loss) per share  11 (0.115)  0.046 

Diluted earnings (loss) per share  11 (0.115)  0.045 

      

 

The above consolidated income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 

 

 

   Consolidated  

    2016   2015 

   $000  $000 

Net (loss)/profit for the period   (7,092)  2,820 

      
Other comprehensive income 
Items in other comprehensive income that may be recycled subsequently through profit and loss     

Foreign currency translation  24 (101)  4,097 

Net loss on cash flow hedge  24 298  (73) 

   197  4,024 

      

Total comprehensive (loss)/profit for the period attributable to members of the parent (6,895)  6,844 

      

 

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 

 

  Consolidated  

 

Note 

31 March 
 2016  

31 March  
2015 

$000  $000 

ASSETS     

CURRENT ASSETS     

Cash and cash equivalents 12 14,165  17,594 

Trade and other receivables 13 26,476  26,081 

Inventories 14 901  802 

Other current assets 19 10,618  11,670 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  52,160  56,147 

     

NON-CURRENT ASSETS     

Trade and other receivables 15 20  374 

Property, plant and equipment 17 20,072  33,140 

Deferred tax assets 8 6,166  4,836 

Intangible assets and goodwill 18 14,248  14,747 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS  40,506  53,097 

TOTAL ASSETS  92,666  109,244 

     

CURRENT LIABILITIES     

Trade and other payables 20 14,194  17,582 

Current tax liability                        8 3,078  3,396 

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 21 70  239 

Derivative financial instruments  -  115 

Provisions 22 1,170  1,678 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  18,512  23,010 

     

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES     

Trade and other payables 20 447  135 

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 21 15  87 

Deferred tax liabilities 8 224  818 

Provisions 22 669  585 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES  1,355  1,625 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  19,867  24,635 

NET ASSETS  72,799  84,609 

     

EQUITY     

Contributed equity 23 273,540  273,540 

Reserves 24 (13,722)  (13,919) 

Accumulated losses  (187,019)  (175,012) 

TOTAL EQUITY  72,799  84,609            

     
 

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 

 

    

 Ordinary Shares 
Retained Earnings 

/(Accumulated 
Losses) 

Foreign Currency 
Translation Reserve 

Employee Equity 
Benefits Reserve 

Hedge Reserve Total 

Consolidated  
 

 
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 

           

Balance at 1 April 2014    273,804 (177,832) (24,240) 6,560 170 78,462 

Profit for the period    - 2,820 - - - 2,820 

Other comprehensive income  - - 4,097 - (73) 4,024 

Total comprehensive income for the period  - 2,820 4,097 - (73) 6,844 

                 

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners             

Share buyback during the period  (264) - - - - (264) 

Cost of share based payments  - - - 86 - 86 

Cash settlement of retention rights  - - - (519) - (519) 

Sub-total  (264) 2,820 4,097 (433) (73) 6,147 

Balance at 31 March 2015  273,540 (175,012) (20,143) 6,127 97 84,609 

                 
           

Balance at 1 April 2015    273,540 (175,012) (20,143) 6,127 97 84,609 

Profit (loss) for the period    - (7,092) - - - (7,092) 

Other comprehensive income  - - (101) - 298 197 

Total comprehensive income /(loss) for the period  - (7,092) (101) - 298 (6,895) 

           

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners       

Dividend paid  - (4,915) - - - (4,915) 

Sub-total  - (12,007) (101) - 298 (11,810) 

Balance at 31 March 2016  273,540 (187,019) (20,244) 6,127 395 72,799 

 

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 

 

  Consolidated  

 Note 

  
31 March 2016  

  
31 March 2015 

$000  $000 

     

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES     

Receipts from customers  122,446  135,181 

Interest received  123  112 

Payments to suppliers and employees  (117,792)  (121,209) 

Interest paid  (248)  (253) 

Income tax paid  (741)  (1,510) 

Net cash flows derived from operating activities  27(a) 3,788  12,321 

     

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES     

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  3,028  - 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (4,985)  (9,092) 

Purchase of intangible assets  -  (99) 

Net cash flows used in investing activities  (1,957)  (9,191) 

     

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES     

Dividends Paid   (4,915)  - 

Repayment of borrowings  (240)  (248) 

Payment for cancelled retention/performance rights  -  (562) 

Share buyback  -  (264) 

Receipt/(payment) of deposits  126  2,247 

Net cash flows derived from/ (used in) financing activities  (5,029)  1,173 

     

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents held  (3,198)  4,303 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial period  17,594  11,955 

Net foreign exchange difference  (231)  1,336 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial period 12 14,165  17,594 

 

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Note 1   Corporate Information 

 

The financial report of the Neptune Marine Services Limited (the Group) for the year ended 31 March 2016 and was authorised for issue in accordance with a 

ǊŜǎƻƭǳǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊΩǎ ƻƴ 29 June 2016. 

     

The financial report covers the Consolidated Group of Neptune Marine Services Limited and its controlled entities. Neptune Marine Services Limited is a listed 

public company, incorporated and domiciled in Australia.         

            

The nature of the operations and principal activities of the Group are described in the DƛǊŜŎǘƻǊΩǎ weport.     

 

Note 2   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 

(a) Basis of Preparation 

 

The financial report is a general purpose financial report, which has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001, Australian 

Accounting Standards and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board. The financial report has been prepared on a 

historical cost basis. 

The financial report is presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($000) unless otherwise stated. 

 

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous year other than in respect of changes in accounting policies described in note 2(c). 

 

Going Concern 

The financial report has been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the continuity of normal business activity and the realisation of assets and 

the settlement of liabilities in the normal course of business.  

 

(b) Compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 

The financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.    

 

(c) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations 

(i) Changes in accounting policies, disclosures, standards and interpretations  

 

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of previous financial reporting period except as follows: 

wŜŦŜǊŜƴŎŜ ¢ƛǘƭŜ !ǇǇƭƛŎŀǘƛƻƴ ŘŀǘŜ 

ƻŦ ǎǘŀƴŘŀǊŘ 

!ǇǇƭƛŎŀǘƛƻƴ ŘŀǘŜ 

ŦƻǊ DǊƻǳǇ 

AASB 2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards ς Conceptual Framework, 

Materiality and Financial Instruments 

The Standard contains three main parts and makes amendments to a number of 
Standards and Interpretations.  

Part A of AASB 2013-9 makes consequential amendments arising from the 
issuance of AASB CF 2013-1.  

Part B makes amendments to particular Australian Accounting Standards to 
delete references to AASB 1031 and also makes minor editorial amendments to 
various other standards. 

Part C makes amendments to a number of Australian Accounting Standards, 

including incorporating Chapter 6 Hedge Accounting into AASB 9 Financial 

Instruments. 

м WŀƴǳŀǊȅ нлмр  м !ǇǊƛƭ нлмр  
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Note 2   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

 

(c) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations (continued) 

 

wŜŦŜǊŜƴŎŜ ¢ƛǘƭŜ !ǇǇƭƛŎŀǘƛƻƴ ŘŀǘŜ 

ƻŦ ǎǘŀƴŘŀǊŘ 

!ǇǇƭƛŎŀǘƛƻƴ ŘŀǘŜ 

ŦƻǊ DǊƻǳǇ 

AASB 2014-1  

Part A -Annual 

Improvements  

2010ς2012 Cycle 

AASB 2014-1 Part A: This standard sets out amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards arising from the issuance by the International 

Accounting Standards Board (IASB) of International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRSs) Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010ς2012 Cycle and Annual 

Improvements to IFRSs 2011ς2013 Cycle. 

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010ς2012 Cycle addresses the following 

items: 

Ʒ !!{. н π /ƭŀǊƛŦƛŜǎ ǘƘŜ ŘŜŦƛƴƛǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ϥǾŜǎǘƛƴƎ ŎƻƴŘƛǘƛƻƴǎϥ ŀƴŘ ϥƳŀǊƪŜǘ 
ŎƻƴŘƛǘƛƻƴϥ ŀƴŘ ƛƴǘǊƻŘǳŎŜǎ ǘƘŜ ŘŜŦƛƴƛǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ϥǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ ŎƻƴŘƛǘƛƻƴϥ ŀƴŘ 
ϥǎŜǊǾƛŎŜ ŎƻƴŘƛǘƛƻƴϥΦ 

Ʒ !!{. о π /ƭŀǊƛŦƛŜǎ ǘƘŜ ŎƭŀǎǎƛŦƛŎŀǘƛƻƴ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜƳŜƴǘǎ ŦƻǊ ŎƻƴǘƛƴƎŜƴǘ 
ŎƻƴǎƛŘŜǊŀǘƛƻƴ ƛƴ ŀ ōǳǎƛƴŜǎǎ ŎƻƳōƛƴŀǘƛƻƴ ōȅ ǊŜƳƻǾƛƴƎ ŀƭƭ ǊŜŦŜǊŜƴŎŜǎ ǘƻ 
!!{. мотΦ 

Ʒ !!{. у π wŜǉǳƛǊŜǎ ŜƴǘƛǘƛŜǎ ǘƻ ŘƛǎŎƭƻǎŜ ŦŀŎǘƻǊǎ ǳǎŜŘ ǘƻ ƛŘŜƴǘƛŦȅ ǘƘŜ Ŝƴǘƛǘȅϥǎ 
ǊŜǇƻǊǘŀōƭŜ ǎŜƎƳŜƴǘǎ ǿƘŜƴ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƴƎ ǎŜƎƳŜƴǘǎ ƘŀǾŜ ōŜŜƴ ŀƎƎǊŜƎŀǘŜŘΦ  
!ƴ Ŝƴǘƛǘȅ ƛǎ ŀƭǎƻ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜŘ ǘƻ ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜ ŀ ǊŜŎƻƴŎƛƭƛŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ǘƻǘŀƭ ǊŜǇƻǊǘŀōƭŜ 
ǎŜƎƳŜƴǘ ŀǎǎŜǘǎ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ Ŝƴǘƛǘȅϥǎ ǘƻǘŀƭ ŀǎǎŜǘǎΦ   

Ʒ !!{. ммс ϧ !!{. моу π /ƭŀǊƛŦƛŜǎ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜ ŘŜǘŜǊƳƛƴŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ŀŎŎǳƳǳƭŀǘŜŘ 
ŘŜǇǊŜŎƛŀǘƛƻƴ ŘƻŜǎ ƴƻǘ ŘŜǇŜƴŘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ǎŜƭŜŎǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ Ǿŀƭǳŀǘƛƻƴ ǘŜŎƘƴƛǉǳŜ 
ŀƴŘ ǘƘŀǘ ƛǘ ƛǎ ŎŀƭŎǳƭŀǘŜŘ ŀǎ ǘƘŜ ŘƛŦŦŜǊŜƴŎŜ ōŜǘǿŜŜƴ ǘƘŜ ƎǊƻǎǎ ŀƴŘ ƴŜǘ 
ŎŀǊǊȅƛƴƎ ŀƳƻǳƴǘǎΦ 

Ʒ !!{. мнп π 5ŜŦƛƴŜǎ ŀ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ Ŝƴǘƛǘȅ ǇǊƻǾƛŘƛƴƎ Yat ǎŜǊǾƛŎŜǎ ŀǎ ŀ 
ǊŜƭŀǘŜŘ ǇŀǊǘȅ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǊŜǇƻǊǘƛƴƎ ŜƴǘƛǘȅΦ ¢ƘŜ ŀƳŜƴŘƳŜƴǘǎ ŀŘŘŜŘ ŀƴ 
ŜȄŜƳǇǘƛƻƴ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ ŘŜǘŀƛƭŜŘ ŘƛǎŎƭƻǎǳǊŜ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜƳŜƴǘǎ ƛƴ ǇŀǊŀƎǊŀǇƘ мт ƻŦ 
!!{. мнп wŜƭŀǘŜŘ tŀǊǘȅ 5ƛǎŎƭƻǎǳǊŜǎ ŦƻǊ Yat ǎŜǊǾƛŎŜǎ ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜŘ ōȅ ŀ 
ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ ŜƴǘƛǘȅΦ tŀȅƳŜƴǘǎ ƳŀŘŜ ǘƻ ŀ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ Ŝƴǘƛǘȅ ƛƴ ǊŜǎǇŜŎǘ 
ƻŦ Yat ǎŜǊǾƛŎŜǎ ǎƘƻǳƭŘ ōŜ ǎŜǇŀǊŀǘŜƭȅ ŘƛǎŎƭƻǎŜŘΦ 

м Wǳƭȅ нлмп м !ǇǊƛƭ нлмр 

AASB 2014-1  

Part A -Annual 

Improvements  

2011ς2013 Cycle 

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011ς2013 Cycle  addresses the following 

items: 

Ʒ !!{. мо π /ƭŀǊƛŦƛŜǎ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜ ǇƻǊǘŦƻƭƛƻ ŜȄŎŜǇǘƛƻƴ ƛƴ ǇŀǊŀƎǊŀǇƘ рн ƻŦ !!{. мо 
ŀǇǇƭƛŜǎ ǘƻ ŀƭƭ ŎƻƴǘǊŀŎǘǎ ǿƛǘƘƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǎŎƻǇŜ ƻŦ !!{. моф ƻǊ !!{. фΣ ǊŜƎŀǊŘƭŜǎǎ 
ƻŦ ǿƘŜǘƘŜǊ ǘƘŜȅ ƳŜŜǘ ǘƘŜ ŘŜŦƛƴƛǘƛƻƴǎ ƻŦ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ŀǎǎŜǘǎ ƻǊ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ 
ƭƛŀōƛƭƛǘƛŜǎ ŀǎ ŘŜŦƛƴŜŘ ƛƴ !!{. монΦ 

Ʒ !!{. мпл π /ƭŀǊƛŦƛŜǎ ǘƘŀǘ ƧǳŘƎƳŜƴǘ ƛǎ ƴŜŜŘŜŘ ǘƻ ŘŜǘŜǊƳƛƴŜ ǿƘŜǘƘŜǊ ŀƴ 
ŀŎǉǳƛǎƛǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ ǇǊƻǇŜǊǘȅ ƛǎ ǎƻƭŜƭȅ ǘƘŜ ŀŎǉǳƛǎƛǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ŀƴ 
ƛƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ ǇǊƻǇŜǊǘȅ ƻǊ ǿƘŜǘƘŜǊ ƛǘ ƛǎ ǘƘŜ ŀŎǉǳƛǎƛǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ŀ ƎǊƻǳǇ ƻŦ ŀǎǎŜǘǎ 
ƻǊ ŀ ōǳǎƛƴŜǎǎ ŎƻƳōƛƴŀǘƛƻƴ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǎŎƻǇŜ ƻŦ !!{. о ǘƘŀǘ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜǎ ŀƴ 
ƛƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ ǇǊƻǇŜǊǘȅΦ ¢Ƙŀǘ ƧǳŘƎƳŜƴǘ ƛǎ ōŀǎŜŘ ƻƴ ƎǳƛŘŀƴŎŜ ƛƴ !!{. оΦ 

м Wǳƭȅ нлмп м !ǇǊƛƭ нлмр 

Amendments to 
AASB 1053 ς 
Transition to and 
between Tiers, 
and related Tier 2 
Disclosure 
Requirements  
[AASB 1053] 

The Standard makes amendments to AASB 1053 Application of Tiers of 

Australian Accounting Standards to: 

Å Clarify that AASB 1053 relates only to general purpose financial 
statements. 

Å Make AASB 1053 consistent with the availability of the AASB 108 
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors option in 
AASB 1 First-time Adoption of Australian Accounting Standards. 

Å Clarify certain circumstances in which an entity applying Tier 2 reporting 
requirements can apply the AASB 108 option in AASB 1; permit an entity 
applying Tier 2 reporting requirements for the first time to do so directly 
using the requirements in AASB 108 (rather that applying AASB 1) when, 
and only when, the entity had not applied, or only selectively applied, 
applicable recognition and measurement requirements in its most recent 
previous annual special purpose financial statements. 

Specify certain disclosure requirements when an entity resumes the 

application of Tier 2 reporting requirements. 

м Wǳƭȅ нлмп м !ǇǊƛƭ нлмр 
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Note 2   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

 

(c) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations (continued) 

 

Furthermore, it has been determined by the Group that there is no impact, material or otherwise, of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations on its 

business except for disclosure purposes and, therefore, no change is necessary to Group accounting policies. 

 

Standards early adopted 

The Group has not elected to early adopt any other new or amended Standards or Interpretations that are issued but not yet effective, as described below. 

 

 Standards issued but not yet effective 

 

wŜŦŜǊŜƴŎŜ ¢ƛǘƭŜ {ǳƳƳŀǊȅ !ǇǇƭƛŎŀǘƛƻƴ 

ŘŀǘŜ ƻŦ 

ǎǘŀƴŘŀǊŘ 

LƳǇŀŎǘ ƻƴ 

DǊƻǳǇ 

CƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ 

wŜǇƻǊǘ 

!ǇǇƭƛŎŀǘƛƻƴ 

ŘŀǘŜ ŦƻǊ 

DǊƻǳǇ 

!!{. ф CƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ 

LƴǎǘǊǳƳŜƴǘǎ 
AASB 9 (December 2014) is a new standard which replaces AASB 139. This 
new version supersedes AASB 9 issued in December 2009 (as amended) and 
AASB 9 (issued in December 2010) and includes a model for classification 
and measurement, a single, forward-ƭƻƻƪƛƴƎ ΨŜȄǇŜŎǘŜŘ ƭƻǎǎΩ ƛƳǇŀƛǊƳŜƴǘ 
model and a substantially-reformed approach to hedge accounting. 

AASB 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. 
However, the Standard is available for early adoption. The own credit 
changes can be early adopted in isolation without otherwise changing the 
accounting for financial instruments. 

Classification and measurement 

AASB 9 includes requirements for a simpler approach for classification and 
measurement of financial assets compared with the requirements of AASB 
139. There are also some changes made in relation to financial liabilities. 

The main changes are described below. 

Financial assets 

a. CƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ŀǎǎŜǘǎ ǘƘŀǘ ŀǊŜ ŘŜōǘ ƛƴǎǘǊǳƳŜƴǘǎ ǿƛƭƭ ōŜ ŎƭŀǎǎƛŦƛŜŘ ōŀǎŜŘ 
ƻƴ όмύ ǘƘŜ ƻōƧŜŎǘƛǾŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ Ŝƴǘƛǘȅϥǎ ōǳǎƛƴŜǎǎ ƳƻŘŜƭ ŦƻǊ ƳŀƴŀƎƛƴƎ 
ǘƘŜ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ŀǎǎŜǘǎΤ όнύ ǘƘŜ ŎƘŀǊŀŎǘŜǊƛǎǘƛŎǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƴǘǊŀŎǘǳŀƭ ŎŀǎƘ 
ŦƭƻǿǎΦ 

b. !ƭƭƻǿǎ ŀƴ ƛǊǊŜǾƻŎŀōƭŜ ŜƭŜŎǘƛƻƴ ƻƴ ƛƴƛǘƛŀƭ ǊŜŎƻƎƴƛǘƛƻƴ ǘƻ ǇǊŜǎŜƴǘ 
Ǝŀƛƴǎ ŀƴŘ ƭƻǎǎŜǎ ƻƴ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘǎ ƛƴ Ŝǉǳƛǘȅ ƛƴǎǘǊǳƳŜƴǘǎ ǘƘŀǘ ŀǊŜ 
ƴƻǘ ƘŜƭŘ ŦƻǊ ǘǊŀŘƛƴƎ ƛƴ ƻǘƘŜǊ ŎƻƳǇǊŜƘŜƴǎƛǾŜ ƛƴŎƻƳŜΦ 5ƛǾƛŘŜƴŘǎ ƛƴ 
ǊŜǎǇŜŎǘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜǎŜ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘǎ ǘƘŀǘ ŀǊŜ ŀ ǊŜǘǳǊƴ ƻƴ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ Ŏŀƴ 
ōŜ ǊŜŎƻƎƴƛǎŜŘ ƛƴ ǇǊƻŦƛǘ ƻǊ ƭƻǎǎ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜǊŜ ƛǎ ƴƻ ƛƳǇŀƛǊƳŜƴǘ ƻǊ 
ǊŜŎȅŎƭƛƴƎ ƻƴ ŘƛǎǇƻǎŀƭ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ƛƴǎǘǊǳƳŜƴǘΦ 

c. CƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ŀǎǎŜǘǎ Ŏŀƴ ōŜ ŘŜǎƛƎƴŀǘŜŘ ŀƴŘ ƳŜŀǎǳǊŜŘ ŀǘ ŦŀƛǊ ǾŀƭǳŜ 
ǘƘǊƻǳƎƘ ǇǊƻŦƛǘ ƻǊ ƭƻǎǎ ŀǘ ƛƴƛǘƛŀƭ ǊŜŎƻƎƴƛǘƛƻƴ ƛŦ ŘƻƛƴƎ ǎƻ ŜƭƛƳƛƴŀǘŜǎ 
ƻǊ ǎƛƎƴƛŦƛŎŀƴǘƭȅ ǊŜŘǳŎŜǎ ŀ ƳŜŀǎǳǊŜƳŜƴǘ ƻǊ ǊŜŎƻƎƴƛǘƛƻƴ 
ƛƴŎƻƴǎƛǎǘŜƴŎȅ ǘƘŀǘ ǿƻǳƭŘ ŀǊƛǎŜ ŦǊƻƳ ƳŜŀǎǳǊƛƴƎ ŀǎǎŜǘǎ ƻǊ 
ƭƛŀōƛƭƛǘƛŜǎΣ ƻǊ ǊŜŎƻƎƴƛǎƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ Ǝŀƛƴǎ ŀƴŘ ƭƻǎǎŜǎ ƻƴ ǘƘŜƳΣ ƻƴ 
ŘƛŦŦŜǊŜƴǘ ōŀǎŜǎΦ 

CƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ƭƛŀōƛƭƛǘƛŜǎ 

/ƘŀƴƎŜǎ ƛƴǘǊƻŘǳŎŜŘ ōȅ !!{. ф ƛƴ ǊŜǎǇŜŎǘ ƻŦ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ƭƛŀōƛƭƛǘƛŜǎ ŀǊŜ ƭƛƳƛǘŜŘ ǘƻ 
ǘƘŜ ƳŜŀǎǳǊŜƳŜƴǘ ƻŦ ƭƛŀōƛƭƛǘƛŜǎ ŘŜǎƛƎƴŀǘŜŘ ŀǘ fair value through profit or loss 
(FVPL) ǳǎƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ŦŀƛǊ ǾŀƭǳŜ ƻǇǘƛƻƴΦ  
²ƘŜǊŜ ǘƘŜ ŦŀƛǊ ǾŀƭǳŜ ƻǇǘƛƻƴ ƛǎ ǳǎŜŘ ŦƻǊ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ƭƛŀōƛƭƛǘƛŜǎΣ ǘƘŜ ŎƘŀƴƎŜ ƛƴ ŦŀƛǊ 
ǾŀƭǳŜ ƛǎ ǘƻ ōŜ ŀŎŎƻǳƴǘŜŘ ŦƻǊ ŀǎ ŦƻƭƭƻǿǎΥ 

d. ¢ƘŜ ŎƘŀƴƎŜ ŀǘǘǊƛōǳǘŀōƭŜ ǘƻ ŎƘŀƴƎŜǎ ƛƴ ŎǊŜŘƛǘ Ǌƛǎƪ ŀǊŜ ǇǊŜǎŜƴǘŜŘ ƛƴ 
ƻǘƘŜǊ ŎƻƳǇǊŜƘŜƴǎƛǾŜ ƛƴŎƻƳŜ όh/Lύ 

e. ¢ƘŜ ǊŜƳŀƛƴƛƴƎ ŎƘŀƴƎŜ ƛǎ ǇǊŜǎŜƴǘŜŘ ƛƴ ǇǊƻŦƛǘ ƻǊ ƭƻǎǎ 

f. !!{. ф ŀƭǎƻ ǊŜƳƻǾŜǎ ǘƘŜ Ǿƻƭŀǘƛƭƛǘȅ ƛƴ ǇǊƻŦƛǘ ƻǊ ƭƻǎǎ ǘƘŀǘ ǿŀǎ 
ŎŀǳǎŜŘ ōȅ ŎƘŀƴƎŜǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŎǊŜŘƛǘ Ǌƛǎƪ ƻŦ ƭƛŀōƛƭƛǘƛŜǎ ŜƭŜŎǘŜŘ ǘƻ ōŜ 
ƳŜŀǎǳǊŜŘ ŀǘ ŦŀƛǊ ǾŀƭǳŜΦ ¢Ƙƛǎ ŎƘŀƴƎŜ ƛƴ ŀŎŎƻǳƴǘƛƴƎ ƳŜŀƴǎ ǘƘŀǘ 
Ǝŀƛƴǎ ƻǊ ƭƻǎǎŜǎ ŀǘǘǊƛōǳǘŀōƭŜ ǘƻ ŎƘŀƴƎŜǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŜƴǘƛǘȅΩǎ ƻǿƴ ŎǊŜŘƛǘ 
Ǌƛǎƪ ǿƻǳƭŘ ōŜ ǊŜŎƻƎƴƛǎŜŘ ƛƴ h/LΦ  ¢ƘŜǎŜ ŀƳƻǳƴǘǎ ǊŜŎƻƎƴƛǎŜŘ ƛƴ 
h/L ŀǊŜ ƴƻǘ ǊŜŎȅŎƭŜŘ ǘƻ ǇǊƻŦƛǘ ƻǊ ƭƻǎǎ ƛŦ ǘƘŜ ƭƛŀōƛƭƛǘȅ ƛǎ ŜǾŜǊ 
ǇǳǊŎƘŀǎŜŘ ŀǘ ŀ ŘƛǎŎƻǳƴǘΦ 

м WŀƴǳŀǊȅ 

нлму 

¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇ 

ƛǎ ȅŜǘ ǘƻ 

ŀǎǎŜǎǎ ǘƘŜ 

ƛƳǇŀŎǘΦ 

м !ǇǊƛƭ нлму 
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Note 2   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

 

(c) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations (continued) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

wŜŦŜǊŜƴŎŜ ¢ƛǘƭŜ {ǳƳƳŀǊȅ !ǇǇƭƛŎŀǘƛƻƴ 

ŘŀǘŜ ƻŦ 

ǎǘŀƴŘŀǊŘ 

LƳǇŀŎǘ ƻƴ 

ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇ 

CƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ 

wŜǇƻǊǘ 

!ǇǇƭƛŎŀǘƛƻƴ 

ŘŀǘŜ ŦƻǊ 

DǊƻǳǇ 

  Impairment 

The final version of AASB 9 introduces a new expected-loss impairment 
model that will require more timely recognition of expected credit losses. 
Specifically, the new Standard requires entities to account for expected 
credit losses from when financial instruments are first recognised and to 
recognise full lifetime expected losses on a more timely basis. 

Hedge accounting 

Amendments to  AASB 9  (December 2009 & 2010 editions and AASB 
2013-9)  issued in December 2013 included the new hedge accounting 
requirements, including changes to hedge effectiveness testing, 
treatment of hedging costs, risk components that can be hedged and 
disclosures. 

Consequential amendments were also made to other standards as a 
result of AASB 9, introduced by AASB 2009-11 and superseded by AASB 
2010-7, AASB 2010-10 and AASB 2014-1 ς Part E. 

AASB 2014-7 incorporates the consequential amendments arising from 
the issuance of AASB 9 in Dec 2014. 

AASB 2014-8 limits the application of the existing versions of AASB 9 
(AASB 9 (December 2009) and AASB 9 (December 2010)) from 1 February 
2015 and applies to annual reporting periods beginning on after 1 January 
2015. 

   

AASB 2014-3 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting 
Standards ς 
Accounting for 
Acquisitions of 
Interests in Joint 
Operations  
[AASB 1 & AASB 11] 

AASB 2014-3 amends AASB 11 Joint Arrangements to provide guidance on 
the accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations in which 
the activity constitutes a business. The amendments require:  

(a)  the acquirer of an interest in a joint operation in which the activity 
constitutes a business, as defined in AASB 3 Business Combinations, 
to apply all of the principles on business combinations accounting in 
AASB 3 and other Australian Accounting Standards except for those 
principles that conflict with the guidance in AASB 11 

(b) the acquirer to disclose the information required by AASB 3 and other 
Australian Accounting Standards for business combinations 

This Standard also makes an editorial correction to AASB 11. 

м WŀƴǳŀǊȅ 
нлмс 

¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇ 
Ƙŀǎ 
ŘŜǘŜǊƳƛƴŜŘ 
ǘƘŜ ƭƛƪŜƭȅ 
ƛƳǇŀŎǘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ 
DǊƻǳǇǎ 
ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ 
ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ 
ǿƛƭƭ ōŜ 
ƛƳƳŀǘŜǊƛŀƭ. 

м !ǇǊƛƭ нлмс 

AASB 2014-4 Clarification of 

Acceptable Methods 

of Depreciation and 

Amortisation 

(Amendments to 

AASB 116 and AASB 
138) 

AASB 116 Property Plant and Equipment and AASB 138 Intangible Assets 
both establish the principle for the basis of depreciation and amortisation 
as being the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic 
benefits of an asset.  

The IASB has clarified that the use of revenue-based methods to calculate 
the depreciation of an asset is not appropriate because revenue 
generated by an activity that includes the use of an asset generally 
reflects factors other than the consumption of the economic benefits 
embodied in the asset. 

The amendment also clarified that revenue is generally presumed to be 
an inappropriate basis for measuring the consumption of the economic 
benefits embodied in an intangible asset. This presumption, however, can 
be rebutted in certain limited circumstances.  

м WŀƴǳŀǊȅ 
нлмс 

¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇ 
Ƙŀǎ 
ŘŜǘŜǊƳƛƴŜŘ 
ǘƘŜ ƭƛƪŜƭȅ 
ƛƳǇŀŎǘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ 
DǊƻǳǇǎ 
ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ 
ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ 
ǿƛƭƭ ōŜ 
ƛƳƳŀǘŜǊƛŀƭ. 
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Note 2   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

 

(c) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations (continued) 

 

 

 

 

 

  

wŜŦŜǊŜƴŎŜ ¢ƛǘƭŜ {ǳƳƳŀǊȅ !ǇǇƭƛŎŀǘƛƻƴ 

ŘŀǘŜ ƻŦ 

ǎǘŀƴŘŀǊŘ 

LƳǇŀŎǘ ƻƴ 

ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇ 

CƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ 

wŜǇƻǊǘ 

!ǇǇƭƛŎŀǘƛƻƴ 

ŘŀǘŜ ŦƻǊ DǊƻǳǇ 

AASB 15 

 

Revenue from 
Contracts with 
Customers 

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers replaces the existing 
revenue recognition standards AASB 111 Construction Contracts, AASB 
118 Revenue and related Interpretations (Interpretation 13 Customer 
Loyalty Programmes, Interpretation 15 Agreements for the Construction 
of Real Estate, Interpretation 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers,  
Interpretation  131 RevenueτBarter Transactions Involving Advertising 
Services and Interpretation 1042 Subscriber Acquisition Costs in the 
Telecommunications Industry). AASB 15 incorporates the requirements of 
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and developed jointly 
with the US Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB). 

AASB 15 specifies the accounting treatment for revenue arising from 
contracts with customers (except for contracts within the scope of other 
accounting standards such as leases or financial instruments).The core 
principle of AASB 15 is that an entity recognises revenue to depict the 
transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that 
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in 
exchange for those goods or services. An entity recognises revenue in 
accordance with that core principle by applying the following steps: 

(a)  Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer 
(b) Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract 
(c)  Step 3: Determine the transaction price 
(d) Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance 

obligations in the contract 
(e) Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a 

performance obligation 
AASB 2015-8 amended the AASB 15 effective date so it is now effective 
for annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2018. 
Early application is permitted.  

AASB 2014-5 incorporates the consequential amendments to a number 
Australian Accounting Standards (including Interpretations) arising 
from the issuance of AASB 15. 

м WŀƴǳŀǊȅ 
нлму 

 

¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇ ƛǎ 
ȅŜǘ ǘƻ ŀǎǎŜǎǎ 
ǘƘŜ ƛƳǇŀŎǘΦ 

м !ǇǊƛƭ нлму 

 

AASB 1057 Application of 
Australian Accounting 
Standards 

This Standard lists the application paragraphs for each other Standard 
(and Interpretation), grouped where they are the same. Accordingly, 
paragraphs 5 and 22 respectively specify the application paragraphs for 
Standards and Interpretations in general. Differing application paragraphs 
are set out for individual Standards and Interpretations or grouped where 
possible.  
The application paragraphs do not affect requirements in other Standards 
that specify that certain paragraphs apply only to certain types of entities. 

м WŀƴǳŀǊȅ 
нлмс 

¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇ 
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ŘŜǘŜǊƳƛƴŜŘ 
ǘƘŜ ƭƛƪŜƭȅ 
ƛƳǇŀŎǘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ 
DǊƻǳǇǎ 
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Note 2   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

 

(c) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations (continued) 

 

 

  

wŜŦŜǊŜƴŎŜ ¢ƛǘƭŜ {ǳƳƳŀǊȅ !ǇǇƭƛŎŀǘƛƻƴ 
ŘŀǘŜ ƻŦ 
ǎǘŀƴŘŀǊŘ 

LƳǇŀŎǘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ 
DǊƻǳǇ CƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ 
wŜǇƻǊǘ 

!ǇǇƭƛŎŀǘƛƻƴ 
ŘŀǘŜ ŦƻǊ DǊƻǳǇ 

AASB 2014-9 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting 
Standards ς Equity 
Method in Separate 
Financial Statements 

AASB 2014-9 amends AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements, and 
consequentially amends AASB 1 First-time Adoption of Australian 
Accounting Standards and AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint 
Ventures, to allow entities to use the equity method of accounting for 
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their 
separate financial statements. 
 
AASB 2014-9 also makes editorial corrections to AASB 127. 
 
AASB 2014-9 applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2016. Early adoption permitted. 

м WŀƴǳŀǊȅ 
нлмс 

¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇ Ƙŀǎ 
ŘŜǘŜǊƳƛƴŜŘ ǘƘŜ 
ƭƛƪŜƭȅ ƛƳǇŀŎǘ ƻƴ 
ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇǎ 
ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ 
ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ ǿƛƭƭ 
ōŜ ƛƳƳŀǘŜǊƛŀƭ. 

м !ǇǊƛƭ нлмс 

AASB 2014-10 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting 
Standards ς Sale or 
Contribution of 
Assets between an 
Investor and its 
Associate or Joint 
Venture 

AASB 2014-10 amends AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and 
AASB 128 to address an inconsistency between the requirements in 
AASB 10 and those in AASB 128 (August 2011), in dealing with the sale 
or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint 
venture. The amendments require: 
 

(a) a full gain or loss to be recognised when a transaction involves a 
business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not) 

(b) a partial gain or loss to be recognised when a transaction involves 
assets that do not constitute a business, even if these assets are 
housed in a subsidiary. 

AASB 2014-10 also makes an editorial correction to AASB 10. 

AASB 2015-10 defers the mandatory effective date (application date) of 
AASB 2014-10 so that the amendments are required to be applied for 
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 instead 
of 1 January 2016. 

м WŀƴǳŀǊȅ 
нлму 

¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇ Ƙŀǎ 
ŘŜǘŜǊƳƛƴŜŘ ǘƘŜ 
ƭƛƪŜƭȅ ƛƳǇŀŎǘ ƻƴ 
ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇǎ 
ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ 
ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ ǿƛƭƭ 
ōŜ ƛƳƳŀǘŜǊƛŀƭ. 

м !ǇǊƛƭ нлму 

AASB 2015-1 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting 
Standards ς Annual 
Improvements to 
Australian Accounting 
Standards 2012ς2014 
Cycle 

The subjects of the principal amendments to the Standards are set out 
below: 
AASB 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations:   

Å Changes in methods of disposal ς where an entity reclassifies 
an asset (or disposal group) directly from being held for 
distribution to being held for sale (or visa versa), an entity 
shall not follow the guidance in paragraphs 27ς29 to 
account for this change.  

AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures:  

Å Servicing contracts  - clarifies how an entity should apply the 
guidance in paragraph 42C of AASB 7 to a servicing contract 
ǘƻ ŘŜŎƛŘŜ ǿƘŜǘƘŜǊ ŀ ǎŜǊǾƛŎƛƴƎ ŎƻƴǘǊŀŎǘ ƛǎ ΨŎƻƴǘƛƴǳƛƴƎ 
ƛƴǾƻƭǾŜƳŜƴǘΩ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ ǇǳǊǇƻǎŜǎ ƻŦ ŀǇǇƭȅƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ŘƛǎŎƭƻǎǳǊŜ 
requirements in paragraphs 42Eς42H of AASB 7. 

Å Applicability of the amendments to AASB 7 to condensed 
interim financial statements - clarify that the additional 
disclosure required by the 

Å amendments to AASB 7 DisclosureςOffsetting Financial 
Assets and Financial Liabilities is not specifically required for 
all interim periods. However, the additional disclosure is 
required to be given in condensed interim financial 
statements that are prepared in accordance with AASB 134 
Interim Financial Reporting when its inclusion would be 
required by the requirements of AASB 134. 

м WŀƴǳŀǊȅ 
нлмс 

¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇ Ƙŀǎ 
ŘŜǘŜǊƳƛƴŜŘ ǘƘŜ 
ƭƛƪŜƭȅ ƛƳǇŀŎǘ ƻƴ 
ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇǎ 
ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ 
ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ ǿƛƭƭ 
ōŜ ƛƳƳŀǘŜǊƛŀƭ. 

м !ǇǊƛƭ нлмс 
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Note 2   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

 

(c) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations (continued) 

 

  

wŜŦŜǊŜƴŎŜ ¢ƛǘƭŜ {ǳƳƳŀǊȅ !ǇǇƭƛŎŀǘƛƻƴ 

ŘŀǘŜ ƻŦ 

ǎǘŀƴŘŀǊŘ 

LƳǇŀŎǘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ 

DǊƻǳǇ CƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ 

wŜǇƻǊǘ 

!ǇǇƭƛŎŀǘƛƻƴ 

ŘŀǘŜ ŦƻǊ 

DǊƻǳǇ 

  AASB 119 Employee Benefits: 

Å Discount rate: regional market issue - clarifies that the high 
quality corporate bonds used to estimate the discount rate 
for post-employment benefit obligations should be 
denominated in the same currency as the liability. Further 
it clarifies that the depth of the market for high quality 
corporate bonds should be assessed at the currency level. 

 
AASB 134 Interim Financial Reporting:  
5ƛǎŎƭƻǎǳǊŜ ƻŦ ƛƴŦƻǊƳŀǘƛƻƴ ΨŜƭǎŜǿƘŜǊŜ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ƛƴǘŜǊƛƳ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǊŜǇƻǊǘΩ - 
amends AASB 134 to clarify the meaning of disclosure of information 
ΨŜƭǎŜǿƘŜǊŜ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ƛƴǘŜǊƛƳ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǊŜǇƻǊǘΩ ŀƴŘ ǘƻ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜ ǘƘŜ ƛƴŎƭǳǎƛƻƴ 
of a cross-reference from the interim financial statements to the 
location of this information. 

   

AASB 2015-2 Amendments to 
Australian 
Accounting Standards 
ς Disclosure 
Initiative: 
Amendments to 
AASB 101 

The Standard makes amendments to AASB 101 Presentation of 
Financial Statements arising from ǘƘŜ L!{.Ωǎ 5ƛǎŎƭƻǎǳǊŜ LƴƛǘƛŀǘƛǾŜ 
project. The amendments are designed to further encourage 
companies to apply professional judgment in determining what 
information to disclose in the financial statements.  For example, the 
amendments make clear that materiality applies to the whole of 
financial statements and that the inclusion of immaterial information 
can inhibit the usefulness of financial disclosures.  The amendments 
also clarify that companies should use professional judgment in 
determining where and in what order information is presented in the 
financial disclosures. 

м WŀƴǳŀǊȅ 
нлмс 

¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇ Ƙŀǎ 
ŘŜǘŜǊƳƛƴŜŘ ǘƘŜ 
ƭƛƪŜƭȅ ƛƳǇŀŎǘ ƻƴ 
ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇǎ 
ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ 
ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ ǿƛƭƭ 
ōŜ ƛƳƳŀǘŜǊƛŀƭ. 

м !ǇǊƛƭ нлмс 

AASB 2015-3 Amendments to 
Australian 
Accounting Standards 
arising from the 
Withdrawal of AASB 
1031 Materiality 

¢ƘŜ {ǘŀƴŘŀǊŘ ŎƻƳǇƭŜǘŜǎ ǘƘŜ !!{.Ωǎ ǇǊƻƧŜŎǘ ǘƻ ǊŜƳƻǾŜ !ǳǎǘǊŀƭƛŀƴ 
guidance on materiality from Australian Accounting Standards. 

м Wǳƭȅ нлмр ¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇ Ƙŀǎ 
ŘŜǘŜǊƳƛƴŜŘ ǘƘŜ 
ƭƛƪŜƭȅ ƛƳǇŀŎǘ ƻƴ 
ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇǎ 
ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ 
ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ ǿƛƭƭ 
ōŜ ƛƳƳŀǘŜǊƛŀƭ. 

м !ǇǊƛƭ нлмс 

AASB 2015-4 Amendments to 
Australian 
Accounting Standards 
ς Financial Reporting 
Requirements for 
Australian Groups 
with a Foreign Parent 

The amendment aligns the relief available in AASB 10 Consolidated 
Financial Statements and AASB 128 Investments in Associates and 
Joint Ventures in respect of the financial reporting requirements for 
Australian groups with a foreign parent. 

м Wǳƭȅ нлмр ¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇ Ƙŀǎ 
ŘŜǘŜǊƳƛƴŜŘ ǘƘŜ 
ƭƛƪŜƭȅ ƛƳǇŀŎǘ ƻƴ 
ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇǎ 
ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ 
ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ ǿƛƭƭ 
ōŜ ƛƳƳŀǘŜǊƛŀƭ. 

м !ǇǊƛƭ нлмс 

AASB 2015-5 Amendments to 
Australian 
Accounting Standards 
ς Investment Entities: 
Applying the 
Consolidation 
Exception 

This makes amendments to AASB 10, AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests 
in Other Entities ŀƴŘ !!{. мну ŀǊƛǎƛƴƎ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ L!{.Ωǎ ƴŀǊǊƻǿ ǎŎƻǇŜ 
amendments associated with Investment Entities. 

м WŀƴǳŀǊȅ  
нлмс 

¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇ Ƙŀǎ 
ŘŜǘŜǊƳƛƴŜŘ ǘƘŜ 
ƭƛƪŜƭȅ ƛƳǇŀŎǘ ƻƴ 
ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇǎ 
ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ 
ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ ǿƛƭƭ 
ōŜ ƛƳƳŀǘŜǊƛŀƭ. 

м !ǇǊƛƭ нлмс 

AASB 2015-9 

 
 
 

 

Amendments to 
Australian 
Accounting Standards 
ς Scope and 
Application 
Paragraphs 
[AASB 8, AASB 133 & 
AASB 1057] 

This Standard inserts scope paragraphs into AASB 8 and AASB 133 in 
place of application paragraph text in AASB 1057. This is to correct 
inadvertent removal of these paragraphs during editorial changes 
made in August 2015. There is no change to the requirements or the 
applicability of AASB 8 and AASB 133. 

м WŀƴǳŀǊȅ  
нлмс 

¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇ Ƙŀǎ 
ŘŜǘŜǊƳƛƴŜŘ ǘƘŜ 
ƭƛƪŜƭȅ ƛƳǇŀŎǘ ƻƴ 
ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇǎ 
ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ 
ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ ǿƛƭƭ 
ōŜ ƛƳƳŀǘŜǊƛŀƭ. 

м !ǇǊƛƭ нлмс 
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Note 2   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

 

(c) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations (continued) 

 

 

 

 

 

  

wŜŦŜǊŜƴŎŜ ¢ƛǘƭŜ {ǳƳƳŀǊȅ !ǇǇƭƛŎŀǘƛƻƴ 

ŘŀǘŜ ƻŦ 

ǎǘŀƴŘŀǊŘ 

LƳǇŀŎǘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ 

DǊƻǳǇ CƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ 

wŜǇƻǊǘ 

!ǇǇƭƛŎŀǘƛƻƴ 

ŘŀǘŜ ŦƻǊ 

DǊƻǳǇ 

AASB 16 Leases The key features of AASB 16 are as follows: 
 
Lessor accounting 

Å AASB 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting 
requirements in AASB 117. Accordingly, a lessor continues 
to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, 
and to account for those two types of leases differently. 

Å AASB 16 also requires enhanced disclosures to be provided 
by lessors that will improve information disclosed about a 
ƭŜǎǎƻǊΩǎ Ǌƛǎƪ ŜȄǇƻǎǳǊŜ, particularly to residual value risk. 
 

AASB 16 supersedes: 
(a) AASB 117 Leases; 
(b)  Interpretation 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a 
Lease; 
(c) SIC-15 Operating LeasesτIncentives; and 
(d) SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal 
Form of a 
Lease. 
 
The new standard will be effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2019. Early application is permitted, provided the new 
revenue standard, AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, 
has been applied, or is applied at the same date as AASB 16. 

1 January 
2019 

¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇ ƛǎ ȅŜǘ 
ǘƻ ŀǎǎŜǎǎ ǘƘŜ 
ƛƳǇŀŎǘΦ 

1 !ǇǊƛƭ 2019 

2016-1 Amendments to 
Australian 
Accounting Standards 
ς Recognition of 
Deferred Tax Assets 
for Unrealised Losses 
[AASB 112] 

This Standard amends AASB 112 Income Taxes (July 2004) and AASB 
112 Income Taxes (August 2015) to clarify the requirements on 
recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses on debt 
instruments measured at fair value.  

1 January 
2017 

¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇ Ƙŀǎ 
ŘŜǘŜǊƳƛƴŜŘ ǘƘŜ 
ƭƛƪŜƭȅ ƛƳǇŀŎǘ ƻƴ 
ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇǎ 
ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ 
ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ ǿƛƭƭ 
ōŜ ƛƳƳŀǘŜǊƛŀƭ. 

1 April 2017 

2016-2 Amendments to 
Australian 
Accounting Standards 
ς Disclosure 
Initiative: 
Amendments to 
AASB 107 

This Standard amends AASB 107 Statement of Cash Flows (August 
2015) to require entities preparing financial statements in accordance 
with Tier 1 reporting requirements to provide disclosures that enable 
users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising 
from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash 
flows and non-cash changes. 

1 January 
2017 

¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇ Ƙŀǎ 
ŘŜǘŜǊƳƛƴŜŘ ǘƘŜ 
ƭƛƪŜƭȅ ƛƳǇŀŎǘ ƻƴ 
ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇǎ 
ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ 
ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ ǿƛƭƭ 
ōŜ ƛƳƳŀǘŜǊƛŀƭ. 

1 April 2017 
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Note 2   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(d) Basis of Consolidation  

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group [as outlined in note 28(a)] for the financial year ended 31 March 2016 in the 

current year and prior year ended 31 March 2015.  

 

Subsidiaries are all those entities over which the Group has power over the investee such that the Group is able to direct the relevant activities, has exposure or 

rights to variable returns from its involvements with the investee and has the ability to usŜ ƛǘǎ ǇƻǿŜǊ ƻǾŜǊ ǘƘŜ ƛƴǾŜǎǘŜŜ ǘƻ ŀŦŦŜŎǘ ǘƘŜ ŀƳƻǳƴǘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƻǊΩǎ 

return. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is obtained by the Group and cease to be consolidated from the date at which control 

is transferred out of the Group. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing 

whether a Group controls another entity. 

 

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent company, using consistent accounting policies. In preparing 

the consolidated financial statements, all intercompany balances, transactions, unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends 

have been eliminated in full. 

 

Investments in subsidiaries held by the Group are accounted for at cost in the separate financial statements of the parent entity less any impairment charges. 

Dividends received from subsidiaries are recorded as a component of other revenues in the separate income statement of the parent entity, and do not impact 

the recorded cost of the investment. Upon receipt of dividend payments from subsidiaries, the parent will assess whether any indicators of impairment of the 

carrying value of the investment in the subsidiary exist. Where such indicators exist, to the extent that the carrying value of the investment exceeds its recoverable 

amount, an impairment loss is recognised. 

 

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. The acquisition method of accounting involves recognising at acquisition 

date, separately from goodwill, the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. The identifiable assets 

acquired and the liabilities assumed are measured at their acquisition date fair values [see note 2(e)]. 

 

The difference between the above items and the fair value of the consideration (including the fair value of any pre-existing investment in the acquiree) is goodwill 

or a discount on acquisition. 

 

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a 

business combination is, from the acquisition date, ŀƭƭƻŎŀǘŜŘ ǘƻ ŜŀŎƘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŎŀǎƘ-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, 

irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquire are assigned to those units. 

 

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit disposal of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of 

is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is 

measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained. 

 

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary that does not result in a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. 

 

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it: 

¶ Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary 

¶ Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest 

¶ Derecognises the cumulative translation differences, recorded in equity 

¶ Recognises the fair value of the consideration received 

¶ Recognises the fair value of any investment retained 

¶ Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss  

¶ wŜŎƭŀǎǎƛŦƛŜǎ ǘƘŜ ǇŀǊŜƴǘΩǎ ǎƘŀǊŜ ƻŦ ŎƻƳǇƻƴŜƴǘǎ ǇǊŜǾiously recognised in other comprehensive income to the profit or loss, or retained earnings, as 

appropriate. 

 

(e) Business Combinations 

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, 

measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether 

it measures the non-controlling interest in the acquiree eitƘŜǊ ŀǘ ŦŀƛǊ ǾŀƭǳŜ ƻǊ ŀǘ ǘƘŜ ǇǊƻǇƻǊǘƛƻƴŀǘŜ ǎƘŀǊŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŀŎǉǳƛǊŜŜΩǎ ƛŘŜƴǘƛŦƛŀōƭŜ ƴŜǘ ŀǎǎŜǘǎΦ !Ŏǉǳƛǎƛǘƛƻƴ Ŏƻǎǘǎ 

incurred are expensed and included in administrative expenses. 

 

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the 

contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host 

contracts by the acquiree.  

 

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to 

fair value at the acquisition date through profit or loss. 
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Note 2   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(e) Business Combinations (continued) 

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the 

contingent consideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability will be recognised in accordance with AASB 139 either in profit or loss or as a change to other 

comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity it will not be remeasured. Subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. In 

instances where the contingent consideration does not fall within the scope of AASB 139, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate AASB. 

 

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interest 
over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the 
difference is recognised in profit or loss. 
 

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a 
business combƛƴŀǘƛƻƴ ƛǎΣ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ ŀŎǉǳƛǎƛǘƛƻƴ ŘŀǘŜΣ ŀƭƭƻŎŀǘŜŘ ǘƻ ŜŀŎƘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŎŀǎƘ-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, 
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units. 
 
Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed 
of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is 
measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained. 

 

(f) Goodwill 

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interest 

over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the 

difference is recognised in profit or loss. 

 

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a 

business combination is, from the acquisition ŘŀǘŜΣ ŀƭƭƻŎŀǘŜŘ ǘƻ ŜŀŎƘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŎŀǎƘ-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, 

irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units. 

 

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed 

of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is 

measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained. 

 

(g) Foreign Currency Translation 

¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŎƻƴǎƻƭƛŘŀǘŜŘ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ ŀǊŜ ǇǊŜǎŜƴǘŜŘ ƛƴ !ǳǎǘǊŀƭƛŀƴ ŘƻƭƭŀǊǎΣ ǿƘƛŎƘ ƛǎ ŀƭǎƻ ǘƘŜ ǇŀǊŜƴǘ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ŦǳƴŎǘƛƻƴŀƭ ŎǳǊǊŜƴŎȅΦ 9ŀŎƘ Ŝƴǘƛǘȅ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇ 

determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. The Group has 

elected to recycle the gain or loss that arises from the direct method of consolidation, which is the method the Group uses to complete its consolidation. 

 

¢ƘŜ ŦǳƴŎǘƛƻƴŀƭ ŎǳǊǊŜƴŎƛŜǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ǎǳōǎƛŘƛŀǊƛŜǎ ŀǊŜ ŀǎ ŦƻƭƭƻǿǎΥ   

       

Australia    AUD       

Asia and Middle East   USD       

United Kingdom   GBP 

 

(i) Transactions and balances 
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group entities at their respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first 
qualifies for recognition. 
 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency spot rate of exchange at the reporting date. 
 
All differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are taken to the income statement with the exception of monetary items that are designated 
ŀǎ ǇŀǊǘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ƘŜŘƎŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ƴŜǘ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ ƻŦ ŀ ŦƻǊŜƛƎƴ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴΦ ¢ƘŜǎŜ ŀǊŜ ǊŜŎƻƎƴƛǎŜŘ ƛƴ ƻǘƘŜǊ ŎƻƳǇǊŜƘŜƴǎƛǾŜ ƛƴŎƻƳŜ until the net investment is 
disposed, at which time, the cumulative amount is reclassified to the income statement. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those 
monetary items are also recorded in other comprehensive income. 
 
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial 

transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is 

determined. The gain or loss arising on retranslation of non-monetary items is treated in line with the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of the item 

(i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other 

comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively). 

        

(ii)  Group companies  
On consolidation the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into AUD at the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their income 

statements are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are 

recognised in other comprehensive income. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign 

operation is recognised in the income statement.  
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Note 2   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(h) Revenue Recognition       
Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts or volume rebates. Revenue is recognised to the 
extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured.   
 
Revenue from the rendering of a service is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of a contract or contracts in progress at reporting date or at the 
time of completion of the contract and billing to the customer. 
 
Stage of completion is measured by reference to labour hours and costs incurred to date as a percentage of total estimated labour hours and costs for each 
contract which is determined by a set quotation with the customer.  
 
When the contract outcome cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable. 
 
Interest revenue is recognised on a proportional basis taking into account the interest rates applicable to the financial assets.   
        
Licence fee revenue is recognised on an accruals basis when the Group has the right to receive payment under the relevant agreement and has performed its 
obligations.  

        

(i) Operating Segments 

An operating segment is a component of an entity that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and 

expenses relating to transactions with other components of the same entity), whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity's chief operating decision 

maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance and for which discrete financial information is available. This 

includes start-up operations which are yet to earn revenues. Management will also consider other factors in determining operating segments such as the level of 

segment information presented to the Board of Directors. 

 

Operating segments have been identified based on the information provided to the chief operating decision makers τ being bŜǇǘǳƴŜΩǎ ǎŜƴƛƻǊ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ. 

 

The Group aggregates two or more operating segments when they have similar economic characteristics, and the segments are similar in each of the following 

respects: 

¶ Nature of the products and services 

¶ Nature of the production processes 

¶ Type or class of customer for the products and services 

¶ Methods used to distribute the products or provide the services, and if applicable 

¶ Nature of the regulatory environment 
 

Operating segments that meet the quantitative criteria as prescribed by AASB 8 are reported separately. However, an operating segment that does not meet the 

quantitative criteria is still reported separately where information about the segment would be useful to users of the financial statements. 

 

Information about other business activities and operating segments that are below the quantitative criteria are combined and disclosed in a separate category for 

άŀƭƭ ƻǘƘŜǊ ǎŜƎƳŜƴǘǎέΦ 

    
(j) Government Grants  
Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be complied with. When 

the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income over the period necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended 

to compensate. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as deferred income and released to income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of 

the related asset. 

 

When the Group receives non-monetary grants, the asset and the grant are recorded gross at nominal amounts and released to the income statement over the 

expected useful life and pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset by equal annual instalments. When loans or similar assistance are provided 

by governments or related institutions with an interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is regarded as additional 

government grants. 

 

(k) Income Tax and Other Taxes 
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities based on 
the current period's taxable income. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting 
date. 
 
Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the income statement. Management periodically evaluates 
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where 
appropriate. 
 
Deferred income tax is provided on all temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for 
financial reporting purposes. 
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Note 2   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(k) Income Tax and Other Taxes (continued) 

 
Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences except:  
 

¶ When the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business 
combination and that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss 

¶ In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the 
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the 
foreseeable future. 

 
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that 
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused tax 
losses can be utilised, except: 
 

ω When the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a 
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss 

ω In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred 
tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable 
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. 

 
The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable 
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each reporting 
date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. Deferred income 
tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates 
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 
 
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the 
deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 
 
Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at that date, would be recognised subsequently if 
new information about facts and circumstances changed. The adjustment would either be treated as a reduction to goodwill (as long as it does not exceed goodwill) 
if it was incurred during the measurement period or in profit or loss. 
 
Tax consolidation legislation  
Neptune Marine Services Limited and its wholly-owned Australian controlled entities implemented the tax consolidation legislation as of 1 July 2009. 

 
The head entity, Neptune Marine Services Limited and the controlled entities in the tax Consolidated Group continue to account for their own current and deferred 
tax amounts. The Group has applied the Group allocation approach in determining the appropriate amount of current taxes and deferred taxes to allocate to 
members of the tax Consolidated Group. 
 
In addition to its own current and deferred tax amounts, the Group also recognises the current tax liabilities (or assets) and the deferred tax assets arising from 
unused tax losses and unused tax credits assumed from controlled entities in the tax Consolidated Group. 
 
Assets or liabilities arising under tax funding agreements with the tax consolidated entities are recognised as amounts receivable from or payable to other entities 
in the Group. Details of the tax funding agreement are disclosed in note 8. 
 
Any difference between the amounts assumed and amounts receivable or payable under the tax funding agreement are recognised as a contribution to (or 
distribution from) wholly-owned tax consolidated entities. 

 
Other taxes 
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except: 

 
ω When the GST incurred on a purchase of goods and services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case the GST is recognised 

as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable 
ω Receivables and payables, which are stated with the amount of GST included  
 

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position. 
 

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities, which 
is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is classified as part of operating cash flows. 
 
Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority. 
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Note 2   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(l) Property, Plant and Equipment      

Each class of property, plant and equipment is historical carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment 

losses.           

         

Plant and equipment           

Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis. The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually by Directors to ensure it is not in excess 

of the recoverable amount from these assets. The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of the expected net cash flows that will be generated from the use 

of the assets employment and subsequent disposal. The expected net cash flows have been discounted to their present values in determining recoverable amounts. 

   

Depreciation           

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets including building and capitalised lease assets, is depreciated on a diminishing value basis over their useful lives to the 

Consolidated Group commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of either the unexpired 

period of the lease or the estimated useful lives of the improvements.  

 

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:   

               
Class of Fixed Asset              Depreciation Rate     

           
 Office furniture, equipment and software  25% - 33%     

 Leasehold Improvements   20% - 33% 

Plant and equipment    20% - 40%    

 Leased Vehicles    20%     

 Remotely Operated Vehicles (ROV's) and Vessels 5-10%       

         

¢ƘŜ ŀǎǎŜǘǎΩ ǊŜǎƛŘǳŀƭ ǾŀƭǳŜǎ ŀƴŘ ǳǎŜŦǳƭ ƭƛǾŜǎ ŀǊŜ ǊŜǾƛŜǿŜŘΣ ŀƴŘ ŀŘƧǳǎǘŜŘ ƛŦ ŀǇǇǊƻǇǊƛŀǘŜΣ ŀǘ ŜŀŎƘ ōŀƭŀƴŎŜ ǎƘŜŜǘ ŘŀǘŜΦ !ƴ ŀǎǎŜǘΩs carrying amount is written down 

ƛƳƳŜŘƛŀǘŜƭȅ ǘƻ ƛǘǎ ǊŜŎƻǾŜǊŀōƭŜ ŀƳƻǳƴǘ ƛŦ ǘƘŜ ŀǎǎŜǘΩǎ ŎŀǊǊȅƛƴƎ ŀƳƻǳƴǘ ƛǎ ƎǊŜŀǘŜǊ ǘƘŀƴ ƛǘǎ estimated recoverable amount.     

 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains and losses are included in the income statement. 

 

(m) Changes in Estimates  

During the financial year, the Group conducted an operational efficiency review on its fleet of remotely operated underwater vehicles (ROV). The Group revised 

the estimated depreciation rate of the ROVs by applying an estimated useful life of 6 years (previously 6-10 years) and revising the residual values of the ROV 

fleet. The revision in estimate was applied on a prospective basis from 1 July 2015. The effect of the above revision on depreciation charge in current period to 

2018 is as shown below. The effect beyond 2018 is insignificant.  

 2016 2017 2018 

Increase in depreciation expense  455,875 14,955 7,897 

    
(n) Leases      
The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at inception date, whether fulfilment of the 

arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is not explicitly specified 

in an arrangement. 

 

For arrangements entered into prior to 1 January 2005, the date of inception is deemed to be 1 January 2005 in accordance with the transitional requirements of 

AASB Interpretation 4. 

 (i)  Group as a lessee     

Finance leases that transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the commencement 

of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between 

finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are 

recognised in finance costs in the income statement. 

 

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the 

lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term. 

 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an operating expense in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

 
(o) Intangible Assets 
Research and development  

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are recognised as an intangible asset when the Group can 
demonstrate: 

¶ The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale 

¶ Its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset 

¶ How the asset will generate future economic benefits 

¶ The availability of resources to complete the asset 

¶ The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development 
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Note 2   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(o) Intangible Assets (continued) 
Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated 

impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of expected 

future benefit. Amortisation is recorded in technical expenses. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually. 

 

(p) Financial Instruments ς Initial Recognition and Subsequent Measurement 

i) Financial assets 

Initial recognition and Measurement 

Financial assets within the scope of AASB 139 are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity 

investments, available-for-sale financial assets, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines 

the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. 

 

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss. 

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way 

trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

 

¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ŀǎǎŜǘǎ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜ ŎŀǎƘ ŀƴŘ ǎƘƻǊǘ-term deposits, and trade and other receivables. 

 

Subsequent measurement 

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as described below: 

 

Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, 

such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR (effective interest rate) method, less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by 

taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income 

in the income statement. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the income statement in finance costs for loans and in cost of sales or other 

operating expenses for receivables. 

 

Derecognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when: 

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired. 

- The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material 

delay to a third party under ŀ έǇŀǎǎ-ǘƘǊƻǳƎƘέ ŀǊǊŀƴƎŜƳŜƴǘΤ ŀƴŘ ŜƛǘƘŜǊ όŀύ the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or 

(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

 

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a άpass-throughέ arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent 

it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. 

 

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to 

ǘƘŜ ŜȄǘŜƴǘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŎƻƴǘƛƴǳƛƴƎ involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the 

associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained. 

 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and 

the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay. 

 

ii) Impairment of financial assets 

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial 

asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has 

occurred after the initial recognition of ǘƘŜ ŀǎǎŜǘ όŀƴ ƛƴŎǳǊǊŜŘ έƭƻǎǎ ŜǾŜƴǘέύ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŀǘ ƭƻǎǎ ŜǾŜƴǘ Ƙŀǎ ŀƴ ƛƳǇŀŎǘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ŜǎǘƛƳŀǘŜŘ ŦǳǘǳǊŜ ŎŀǎƘ Ŧƭƻǿǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ 

asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is 

experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other 

financial reorganisation and when observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or 

economic conditions that correlate with defaults. 

 
Financial assets carried at amortised cost 

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are 

individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment 

exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics 

and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, 

recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment. 

 
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the ŀǎǎŜǘΩǎ carrying amount 

and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred). 
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Note 2   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(p) Financial Instruments ς Initial Recognition and Subsequent Measurement (continued) 

The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial assŜǘΩǎ ƻǊƛƎƛƴŀƭ 9Lw. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for 

measuring any impairment loss is the current EIR. 

 

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement. Interest 

income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose 

of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of finance income in the income statement. Loans together with the associated 

allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Group. If, in a 

subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the 

previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited 

to finance costs in the income statement. 

 

iii) Financial liabilities  

Initial Recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities within the scope of AASB 139 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives 

designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. 

 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of loans and borrowings, directly attributŀōƭŜ ǘǊŀƴǎŀŎǘƛƻƴ ŎƻǎǘǎΦ ¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ 

liabilities include trade and other payables and loans and borrowings. 

 

Subsequent measurement 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, described as follows: 

 

Loans and borrowings 

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised 

in the income statement when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. 

 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR 

amortisation is included in finance costs in the income statement. 

 

Derecognition 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by 

another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is 

treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the 

income statement. 

 

(q) Inventories  

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition is accounted for 

as follows:  

 

Raw materials: 

¶ Purchase cost on a first in, first out basis 

 

Finished goods and work in progress: 

¶ Cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs 

 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make 

the sale.    

      

(r) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets      

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing 

ŦƻǊ ŀƴ ŀǎǎŜǘ ƛǎ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜŘΣ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇ ŜǎǘƛƳŀǘŜǎ ǘƘŜ ŀǎǎŜǘΩǎ ǊŜŎƻǾŜǊŀōƭŜ ŀƳƻǳƴǘΦ !ƴ ŀǎǎŜǘΩǎ ǊŜŎƻǾŜǊŀōƭŜ ŀƳƻǳƴǘ ƛǎ ǘƘŜ ƘƛƎƘŜǊ ƻŦ ŀƴ ŀǎǎŜǘΩǎ ƻǊ cash generating units 

(CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely 

independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered 

impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a 

pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to 

sell, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These 

calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.  

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for eŀŎƘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ /D¦ǎ ǘƻ ǿƘƛŎƘ 

the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years.  

 

For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. 
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Note 2   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(s)  Impairment of Non-Financial Assets (continued) 

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the income statement in expense categories consistent with 

the function of the impaired asset, except for a property previously revalued and the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case, the 

impairment is also recognised in other comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation. 

 

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no 

longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the assets or CGUs recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment 

loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to ŘŜǘŜǊƳƛƴŜ ǘƘŜ ŀǎǎŜǘΩǎ ǊŜŎƻǾŜǊŀōƭŜ ŀƳƻǳƴǘ ǎƛƴŎŜ ǘƘŜ ƭŀǎǘ ƛƳǇŀƛǊƳŜƴǘ ƭƻǎǎ ǿŀǎ ǊŜŎƻƎƴƛǎŜŘΦ 

The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been 

determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the income statement unless 

the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. 

    

The following assets have specific characteristics for impairment testing: 
 
Goodwill 

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually (as at 31 March) and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. 

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable 

amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods. 

 
 
Intangible assets 

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually as at 31 December either individually or at the CGU level, as appropriate, and when 

circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. 

 

(t) Cash and Short-Term Deposits  

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three 

months or less. 

 
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits as defined above, net of outstanding bank 
overdrafts.  

 

(u) Provisions  

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources 

embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group 

expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when 

the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the income statement net of any reimbursement. 
 
tǊƻǾƛǎƛƻƴǎ ŀǊŜ ƳŜŀǎǳǊŜŘ ŀǘ ǘƘŜ ǇǊŜǎŜƴǘ ǾŀƭǳŜ ƻŦ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘΩǎ ōŜǎǘ ŜǎǘƛƳŀǘŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŜȄǇŜƴŘƛǘǳǊŜ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜŘ ǘƻ ǎŜǘǘƭŜ ǘƘŜ ǇǊŜǎŜƴǘ obligation at reporting date.
  
Wages, salaries, annual leave and non-monetary benefits        

tǊƻǾƛǎƛƻƴ ƛǎ ƳŀŘŜ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ƭƛŀōƛƭƛǘȅ ŦƻǊ ŜƳǇƭƻȅŜŜ ōŜƴŜŦƛǘǎ ŀǊƛǎƛƴƎ ŦǊƻƳ ǎŜǊǾƛŎŜǎ ǊŜƴŘŜǊŜŘ ōȅ ŜƳǇƭƻȅŜŜǎ ǘƻ ōŀƭŀƴŎŜ Řŀte. Employee benefits that are due 

to be settled within one year have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled, plus related on-costs.  

     

Employee benefits payable later than one year have been measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits. 

 

Long service leave 

The liability for long service leave is recognised and measured as the present value of expected future payment to be made in respect of services provided by 

employees up to the reporting date using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of 

employee departures, and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on national corporate bonds 

with terms to maturity and currencies that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 

 

(v) Share-Based Payment Transactions 
Employees (including senior executives) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees render services 

as consideration for equity instruments of the Group (equity-settled transactions) and equity instruments of MTQ (cash settled transactions).  

 

Equity-settled transactions 

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in other capital reserves in equity, over the period in which the 

performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting 

date reflects the extent to which the vesting perƛƻŘ Ƙŀǎ ŜȄǇƛǊŜŘ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The 

income statement expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is 

recognised in employee benefits expense (Note 7c). 

 

 
 
  



2016 FINANCIAL REPORT  NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

NEPTUNE MARINE SERVICES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES   41 

ABN: 76 105 665 843 

 

Note 2   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(v) Share-Based Payment Transactions (continued) 

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for a transaction for which vesting is conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition. 

These are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service 

conditions are satisfied. 

 

When the terms of an equity-settled transaction award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense as if the terms had not been modified, if 

the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share based payment 

transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification. 
 
When an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised 

immediately. This includes any award where non vesting conditions within the control of either the entity or the employee are not met. However, if a new award 

is substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they 

were a modification of the original award, as described in the previous paragraph. 

 

Cash-settled transactions 

The monetary value to be awarded is determined and converted to number of MTQ ordinary shares based on ruling market price which is defined as the closing 

market price after the financial year announcement. This fair value is expensed over the period until the vesting date with recognition of a corresponding liability. 

The liability is remeasured to fair value at each reporting date based on the MTQ share price at each reporting date, with changes in fair value recognised in 

employee benefits expense. 

 

Note 3  Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions  

  

¢ƘŜ ǇǊŜǇŀǊŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŎƻƴǎƻƭƛŘŀǘŜŘ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜǎ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ ǘƻ ƳŀƪŜ ƧǳŘƎŜƳŜƴǘǎΣ ŜǎǘƛƳŀǘŜǎ ŀƴŘ ŀǎǎǳƳǇtions that affect the reported 

amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about 

these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future 

periods. 

 

(i) Significant Accounting Judgements   

Lƴ ǘƘŜ ǇǊƻŎŜǎǎ ƻŦ ŀǇǇƭȅƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŀŎŎƻǳƴǘƛƴƎ ǇƻƭƛŎƛŜǎΣ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ Ƙŀǎ ƳŀŘŜ ǘƘŜ ŦƻƭƭƻǿƛƴƎ judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts 

recognised in the consolidated financial statements: 

 

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill and indefinite life intangibles 

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of 

disposal and its value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five 

years and do not include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or sƛƎƴƛŦƛŎŀƴǘ ŦǳǘǳǊŜ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘǎ ǘƘŀǘ ǿƛƭƭ ŜƴƘŀƴŎŜ ǘƘŜ ŀǎǎŜǘΩǎ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ 

of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model as well as the expected future cash-

inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. The key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount for the different CGUs, including a 

sensitivity analysis, are disclosed and further explained in Note 17. 

 

Taxation 

The Group's accounting policy for taxation requires management's judgement as to the types of arrangements considered to be a tax on income in contrast to an 

operating cost. Judgement is also required in assessing whether deferred tax assets and certain deferred tax liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial 

position. Deferred tax assets, including those arising from unrecouped tax losses, capital losses and temporary differences, are recognised only where it is 

considered more likely than not that they will be recovered, which is dependent on the generation of sufficient future taxable profits. Deferred tax liabilities arising 

from temporary differences in investments, caused principally by retained earnings held in foreign tax jurisdictions, are recognised unless repatriation of retained 

earnings can be controlled and are not expected to occur in the foreseeable future. 
 
Assumptions about the generation of future taxable profits and repatriation of retained earnings depend on management's estimates of future cash flows. These 

depend on estimates of future production and sales volumes, operating costs, restoration costs, capital expenditure, dividends and other capital management 

transactions. Judgements are also required about the application of income tax legislation. These judgements and assumptions are subject to risk and uncertainty, 

hence there is a possibility that changes in circumstances will alter expectations, which may impact the amount of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities 

recognised on the statement of financial position and the amount of other tax losses and temporary differences not yet recognised. In such circumstances, some 

or all of the carrying amounts of recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities may require adjustment, resulting in a corresponding credit or charge to the statement 

of comprehensive income. 

 

(ii) Significant Accounting Estimates and Assumptions 

Impairment of goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives 

The Group determines whether goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives are impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the 

recoverable amount of the cash-generating units, using a value in use discounted cash flow methodology, to which the goodwill and intangibles with indefinite 

useful lives are allocated. No impairment loss was recognised in the current period in respect of goodwill (2015: $nil). The assumptions used in this estimation of 

recoverable amount and the carrying amount of goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives including a sensitivity analysis are discussed in note 18.
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Note 3  Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions (Continued) 

Share-based payment transactions 

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the date at which they are 

granted. The fair value is determined with the assistance of an external valuer using an option pricing model. The related assumptions are detailed in note 29. The 

accounting estimates and assumptions relating to equity-settled share-based payments would have no impact on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 

within the next annual reporting period but may impact expenses and equity.  

 

Cash-settled transactions with employees are measured by reference to the fair value of the performance entitlements at the date at which they are granted. The 

related assumptions are detailed in note 29. The accounting estimates and assumptions relating to cash-settled share-based payments would have impact on the 

carrying amount of liability and related expense within the next annual reporting period.  

     

Estimation of useful lives of assets 

The estimation of the useful lives of assets has been based on historical experience as well as manufacturers' warranties (for plant and equipment), lease terms 

(for leased equipment) and turnover policies (for motor vehicles). In addition, the condition of the assets is assessed at least once per year and considered against 

the remaining useful life. Adjustments to useful lives are made when considered necessary. 

 

Depreciation charges are included in note 17. 

 

Note 4  Financial Risk Management          

       

¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise trade and other payables, finance facilities, finance leases and hire purchases. The main 

ǇǳǊǇƻǎŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜǎŜ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ƭƛŀōƛƭƛǘƛŜǎ ƛǎ ǘƻ ŦƛƴŀƴŎŜ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴǎ ŀƴŘ ǘƻ ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜ ƎǳŀǊŀƴǘŜŜǎ ǘƻ ǎǳǇǇƻǊǘ ƛǘǎ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴǎΦ ¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ǇǊƛƴŎƛǇŀƭ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ŀǎǎŜǘǎ 

include trade and other receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that derive directly from its operations. 

 

Risk Exposures and Responses 

The Group manages its exposure to key financiŀƭ ǊƛǎƪǎΣ ƛƴŎƭǳŘƛƴƎ ƛƴǘŜǊŜǎǘ ǊŀǘŜ ŀƴŘ ŎǳǊǊŜƴŎȅ Ǌƛǎƪ ƛƴ ŀŎŎƻǊŘŀƴŎŜ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ Ǌƛǎƪ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ ǇƻƭƛŎȅΦ 

¢ƘŜ ƻōƧŜŎǘƛǾŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǇƻƭƛŎȅ ƛǎ ǘƻ ǎǳǇǇƻǊǘ ǘƘŜ ŘŜƭƛǾŜǊȅ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǘŀǊƎŜǘǎ ǿƘƛƭŜ ǇǊƻǘŜŎǘƛƴƎ ŦǳǘǳǊŜ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǎŜŎurity. 

 
At various times the Group entered into derivative transactions, principally forward currency contracts. The purpose is to manage the interest rate and currency 
Ǌƛǎƪǎ ŀǊƛǎƛƴƎ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴǎ ŀƴŘ ƛǘǎ ǎƻǳǊŎŜǎ ƻŦ ŦƛƴŀƴŎŜΦ 5ŜǊƛǾŀǘƛǾŜǎ ŎƭŀǎǎƛŦƛŜŘ ŀǎ Ƙeld for trading relating to forward currency contracts provided 
economic hedges ŀƴŘ ǿŜǊŜ ōŀǎŜŘ ƻƴ ƭƛƳƛǘǎ ǎŜǘ ōȅ ǘƘŜ .ƻŀǊŘΦ ¢ƘŜ Ƴŀƛƴ Ǌƛǎƪǎ ŀǊƛǎƛƴƎ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency 
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group uses different methods to measure and manage different types of risks to which it is exposed. These include monitoring 
levels of exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange risk and assessments of market forecasts for interest rate and foreign exchange. Ageing analyses and 
monitoring of specific credit allowances are undertaken to manage credit risk. Liquidity risk is monitored through the development of future rolling cash flow 
forecasts.  
 
The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks as summarised below. 
 
Primary responsibility for identification and control of financial risks rests with the Group Finance department under the authority of the Board. The Board provides 

principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit allowances, and future 

cash flow forecast projections. 
 

The Group holds the following financial instruments: Consolidated  

     2016  2015 

    $000  $000 

Financial Assets      

Cash and cash equivalents   14,165  17,594 

Trade and other receivables   26,212  26,455 

Derivative financial instruments   283  - 

Total    40,660  44,049 

Financial Liabilities      

Trade and other payables   14,193  17,717 

Derivative financial instruments  -  115 

Interest bearing loans and borrowings  85   326 

Total    14,278  18,158 
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Note 4  Financial Risk Management (continued) 

Risk Exposures and Responses (continued) 
(i) Interest Rate Risk 
 
Cash and cash equivalents 
The Group held its cash reserves on deposit and in cheque accounts during the period, which earned interest at rates ranging between 0% and 3% (2014: 0% and 
3%) depending on account balances. Other than cash and other short term deposits, all thŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ŀǎǎŜǘǎ ŀǊŜ ƴƻƴ-interest bearing. 
 
Interest bearing liabilities 
Interest bearing liabilities are comprised of hire purchase agreements of $70,000 (2015: $119,000) and other finance arrangements of $85,000 (2015: $207,000). 
Other than the hire purchase agreements and ƻǘƘŜǊ ŦƛƴŀƴŎŜ ŀǊǊŀƴƎŜƳŜƴǘǎΣ ŀƭƭ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ƭƛŀōƛƭƛǘƛŜǎ ŀǊŜ ƴƻƴ-interest bearing. 
 
¢ƘŜ ŦƻƭƭƻǿƛƴƎ ǎŜǘǎ ƻǳǘ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŜȄǇƻǎǳǊŜ ǘƻ ǾŀǊƛŀōƭŜ ƛƴǘŜǊŜǎǘ ǊŀǘŜ ǊƛǎƪΣ ƛƴŎƭǳŘƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ŜŦŦŜŎǘƛǾŜ ŀǾŜǊŀƎŜ ƛƴǘerest rate by maturity periods. 
 

       Consolidated 

     Average 
Interest Rate 

 2016 

       $000 

Financial Assets        

Cash and cash equivalents     14,165 

Financial liabilities       

Hire Purchase agreements    13.5%  (70) 

Other finance arrangements *   0.22%  (85) 

       14,010 

* Other finance arrangements include Microsoft Office financing.   

     Average 
Interest Rate 

 2015 

       $000 

Financial Assets        

Cash and cash equivalents       17,594 

Financial Liabilities          

Hire Purchase agreements     13.50%  (119) 

Other finance arrangements      0.22%  (207) 

         17,268 

* Other finance arrangements include Microsoft Office funding.    

 

¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ƳƛȄ ƻŦ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ŀǎǎŜǘǎ ŀƴŘ ƭƛŀōƛƭƛǘƛŜǎ ŀǊŜ ŜȄǇƻǎŜŘ ǘƻ !ǳǎǘǊŀƭƛŀƴ, Singapore and United Kingdom variable interest rate risk determined by local financial 

institutions. 

 

As at 31 March 2016, if interest rates had changed by +/- 100 basis points from the year end rates with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit/(loss) for 

the period would have been $152,696 higher/lower (2015: $121,000).  This would be a result of higher/lower interest revenue on deposits and higher/lower 

interest expense on borrowings.            

   

(ii) Foreign Currency Risk           
The consolidated entity is exposed to foreign currency on sales, purchases, investments, and other borrowings that are denominated in a currency other than the 

functional currency. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily US Dollars and GB Pounds.      

          

The Group uses foreign currency denominated cash and foreign exchange forward contracts to manage some of its transaction exposures. The foreign exchange 

forward contracts are designated as cash flow hedges and are entered into for periods consistent with foreign exposure of the underlying transactions, generally 

from one to 24 months. With regard to other foreign currency transactions, generally there is no need to manage currencies as there is a corresponding asset or 

liability which will offset any foreign currency risk.  

 

The financial instruments exposed to movements in the GBP are:  Consolidated  

     2016  2015 

     $000  $000 

Cash and cash equivalents    20  1 

Trade and other payables    (165)  (28) 

Net exposure    (145)  (27) 
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Note 4  Financial Risk Management (continued) 

Foreign Currency Risk (continued) 

  Consolidated 

The financial instruments exposed to movements in the USD are:  $000  $000 

Cash and cash equivalents    1,533  227            

Trade and other receivables    2,505  1,935 

Trade and other payables    (1,517)  (153) 

Net exposure    2,521  2,009 
 
As at 31 March 2016, the post-tax profit of the consolidated entity would change by the following amounts as a result of movements in different exchange rates:
      

- if the AUD had strengthened/weakened by 10% against the GBP, post-tax profit for the period would have been $14,484 lower/higher. 

- if the AUD had strengthened/weakened by 10% against the USD, post-tax profit for the period would have been $197,264 lower/higher 

 

As at 31 March 2015, the post-tax profit of the consolidated entity would change by the following amounts as a result of movements in different exchange rates: 
          

- if the AUD had strengthened/weakened by 10% against the GBP, post-tax profit for the period would have been $1,856 lower/higher. 

- if the AUD had strengthened/weakened by 10% against the USD, post-tax profit for the period would have been $102,786 lower/higher. 

 

The breakdown of trade debtors by currency and ageing is included below (balances are in foreign denominated currency):  

 
 Consolidated 

 
 Current  Past due but not impaired  

Past due and 
impaired  Total 

 
 $000  $000 

 
$000  $000  $000 

Individual Currency 0 - 60 days  61 - 90 days 
 

90 + days     

Australian Dollars   14,157    192  
 

493   -   14,842  

United States Dollars  1,221   54    5,783   49    7,107  

Great British Pounds 1,786   14    109   241   2,150  

 

 Consolidated 

 Current  Past due but not impaired  
Past due and 

impaired  Total 

 $000  $000 
 

$000  $000  $000 

Australian Dollar Equivalent 0 - 60 days  61 - 90 days 
 

90 + days     

Australian Dollars   14,157    192  
 

493   -   14,842  

United States Dollars  1,323    59   6,265   64    7,711  

Great British Pounds 3,217    25   197    453    3,892  

   18,697   276  
 

 6,955    517    26,445  

 

  

(iii) Credit Risk           

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the consolidated entity.  Certain businesses 

within the consolidated entity are largely reliant on a small number of customers which increases the concentration of credit risk.  However, the consolidated 

ŜƴǘƛǘȅΩǎ ŎǳǎǘƻƳŜǊǎ ŀǊŜ ǿŜƛƎƘǘŜŘ ǘƻǿŀǊŘǎ ƭŀǊƎŜ ǊŜǇǳǘŀōƭŜ ŎƭƛŜƴǘǎΦ  
 
Credit risk is managed through the credit approval process instigated by management at head office and by monitoring counterparties periodically. 

              

(iv) Liquidity Risk           

Liquidity risk is the inability to access funds, both anticipated and unforeseen, which may lead to the Group being unable to meet its obligations in an orderly 

manner as they arise. 

 

The Group's liquidity position is managed to ensure sufficient funds are available to meet financial commitments in a timely and cost-effective manner.  The Group 

is primarily funded through on-going cash flow, debt funding and equity capital raisings, as and when required. 

 

Management regularly monitors actual and forecast cash flows to manage liquidity risk.  
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Note 4  Financial Risk Management (continued) 

 

Financial Instruments           

The table below reflects the timing of repayments of recognised financial liabilities at 31 March 2016. As such, the amounts may not reconcile to the balance 

sheet. 

   Within Year  1 to 5 y ears  Total 

   $000  $000  $000 

   2016 
 

2015  2016 
 

2015  2016  2015 

Financial Liabilities:    
 

   
 

     

Trade and sundry payables  14,194 
 

 17,582   447  
 

135   14,641   17,717  

Lease liabilities and other  70 
 

 239   15 
 

87  85  326   

Total Financial Liabilities  14,264 
 

 17,821   462 
 

222    14,726   18,043  

 

 

Fair value hierarchy 

All financial instruments for which fair value is recognized or disclosed are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest 

level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

(a) Quoted prices in active markets (Level 1); 

(b) Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly (Level 2); and 

(c) Inputs that are not based on observable market data (Level 3). 

The Group recognizes transfers between the levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of the reporting period during which the transfer has occurred. There 

were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3 fair value measurements during the year ended 31 March 2016. 

 

The carrying value of other financial measurements not measured at fair value approximates their fair values. 

 

Note 5  Operating Segments 

 

Identification of Reportable Segments            

The Group has identified its operating segments based on the internal reports that are reviewed and used by bŜǇǘǳƴŜΩǎ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ ǘŜŀƳ in assessing 

performance and in determining the allocation of resources.         

     

The operating segments are identified by management based on the nature of the services provided to customers. Discrete financial information about each of 

these operating businesses is reported to bŜǇǘǳƴŜΩǎ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ ǘŜŀƳ on at least a monthly basis. 

 

Types of Products and Services 

The reportable segments are based on aggregated operating segments determined by the similarity of the products produced and sold and/or services provided, 

ŀǎ ǘƘŜǎŜ ŀǊŜ ǘƘŜ ǎƻǳǊŎŜǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ƳŀƧƻǊ Ǌƛǎƪǎ ŀƴŘ ƘŀǾŜ ǘƘŜ Ƴƻǎǘ ŜŦŦŜŎǘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ǊŀǘŜǎ ƻŦ ǊŜǘǳǊƴΦ 

 

The Group comprises the two distinct divisions: Offshore Services and Engineering Services. Globally, the company has operational bases in Australia, South East 

Asia and the United Kingdom. The services provided to customers are on an offshore and engineering basis and can combine services from multiple regions. 

   

Offshore Services          

The Offshore Services division provides the oil and gas, marine and associated industries with a range of specialised services, including: commercial diving, 

inspection, repair and maintenance support, difficult and confined area access via rope access, tension netting and modular platforms, remotely operated vehicles 

(ROVs), subsea pipeline/cable stabilisation and protection, hydro graphic surveying, positioning and geophysical support, and project management.  

 

Engineering Services             

The Engineering Services division provides the oil and gas, marine, renewable energy and associated industries with a range of specialised services, including: 

subsea and pipeline engineering, fabrication, assembly and testing, refurbishment, installation, maintenance, the patented NEPSYS® dry underwater welding 

technology, and project management.  

        

Accounting Policies and Inter-Segment Transactions  
The accounting policies used by the Group in reporting segments internally are the same as those contained in note 2 to the accounts and in the prior period, 

except as detailed below: 

 

Inter-entity sales 

Inter-entity sales are recognised based on an internally set transfer price.  The price aims to reflect what the business operation could achieve if they sold their 

output and services to external parties at arm's length.  
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Note 5  Operating Segments (continued) 

 

Corporate charges 

Corporate charges comprise nonςsegmental expenses such as head office expenses and interest. Corporate charges are allocated to each business segment on a 

proportionate basis linked to segment revenue so as to determine a segmental result.  

    

It is the Group's policy that if items of revenue and expense are not allocated to operating segments then any associated assets and liabilities are also not allocated 

to segments. This is to avoid asymmetrical allocations within segments which management believe would be inconsistent.  

 

Unallocated items 

The following items and associated assets and liabilities are not allocated to operating segments as they are not considered part of the core operations of any 

segment:               

 Finance costs          

 Corporate, shared service and Board expenses          

 Technical expenses           

 Share-based payments           

 Foreign exchange gain/ (loss)  

 Deferred tax assets       

 

Major Customers 

The Group has a number of customers to which it provides its services. Approximately 20% or $24,877,274 (2015: 20% or $26,830,753) arose from the sale to the 
DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ǘǿƻ ƭŀǊƎŜǎǘ customers. These revenues were included in the offshore division segment. No other single customer contributed 10% or more to ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ 
revenue for both 2016 and 2015. 
 

The following table presents revenue and profit information for reportable segments for the year ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015. 

    Continuing Operations 

    Engineering Offshore Services Total 

 
 

 2016 
 

2015  2016  2015  2016 

 
  

2015 

    $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 

Revenue       

Sales to external customers 26,501 43,420 91,980 91,995 118,481 135,415 

Intersegment sales 11,248 15,749 24,630   13,784 35,878 29,533 

Other revenue    8 10  115 102   122 112 

Total sales revenue 37,757 59,179 116,725 105,881 154,482 165,060 

            

Internal sales elimination     (35,878) (29,533) 

          

Total revenue per the income statement   118,604 135,527 

 
Result          
Segment result before impairments, asset write downs and 
items below: 1,671 5,876 5,447 8,719  7,118 14,595 

Fixed Asset Impairment  - - (6,919) - (6,919) - 

Segment results after impairment and before items below: 1,671 5,876 (1,472) 8,719 199 14,595 

 
Reconciliation of segment net profit before tax to net profit before tax    

Finance costs     (248) (253) 

Unallocated Corporate, shared services and Board expenses     (7,549) (9,285) 

Technical expenses     (46) (255) 

Share-based payments     (266) (511) 

Foreign exchange loss     (523) (118) 

Net profit/( loss) from continuing operations before tax per the income statement  (8,433) 4,173 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2016 FINANCIAL REPORT  NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

NEPTUNE MARINE SERVICES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES   47 

ABN: 76 105 665 843 

 

Note 5  Operating Segments (continued) 

       Continuing Operations     

    Engineering Offshore Services Total 

   2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 

Segment assets   $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 

Segment operating assets  13,924 22,427 59,465 68,726 73,389 91,153 

Goodwill    4,270 4,270 8,841 8,985 13,111  13,255 

Segment assets   18,194 26,697 68,306 77,711 86,500 104,408 

          

Reconciliation of segment assets to the statement of financial position     

Deferred tax assets      6,166 4,836 

Total assets from continuing operations per the statement of financial position  92,666 109,244 

 

Entity Wide Information 

Revenue from external customers by geographical locations is detailed below: 

    
Segment Revenues from 

External Customers 
Carrying Amount of  Total 

Assets 

    

  
2016 
$000 

  
2015 
$000 

2016 
$000 

2015 
$000 

Australia - country of domicile    72,700 79,232 50,195 53,544 

Asia and Middle East    18,587 9,922 12,574 14,702 

United Kingdom    27,194 46,261       29,897 40,998 

    118,481 135,415 92,666 109,244 

Note 6  Revenue & Other Income 

 

Consolidated Group 
 
 

 2016  
 

 2015 

$000  $000 

a) Revenue   
 

 
 τ Rendering of services revenue from operating activities 118,481 

 
135,415 

 τ Other revenue - interest received    123 
 

112 

 
Total Revenue  118,604 

 
135,527 

b) Other Income   
 

 

 τ Insurance proceeds  2,510 
 

13 

 τ Other income   81 
 

- 

 
Total Other Income     2,591 

 
13 

 

During the period several assets were subject to insurance claims and in line with the relevant provisions of AASB 116, any associated loss or damage of the 

asset, compensation subsequently received and any subsequent replacement have been disclosed as separate events. Refer to note 2(a) for details on loss on 

disposal of property, plant and equipment. 

 

Note 7  Expenses 

       Consolidated Group 

       
  

 2016 
 

 2015 

a) Finance costs:     $000 
 

$000 

 τ Interest to unrelated parties  248 
 

253 

 Total finance costs     248 
 

253 

 

b) Depreciation, impairment (excluding goodwill) and amortisation:   
 

 

 (i) Included in cost of sales     
 

 

 τ Depreciation     5,853 
 

  4,965 
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Note 7  Expenses (continued) 

 (ii) Included in administrative expenses    
 

 

 τ Depreciation      892 
 

706 

 τ Amortisation      354 
 

267 

 Total     1,246   973 

 Total depreciation and amortisation   7,099  
5,938 

c) Employee benefit expenses:     
 

 

 i) Included in Cost of Sales     
 

 

    τ salaries and wages    33,286 
 

  32,640 

    τ superannuation    2,187 
 

2,276 

    τ other     2,250 
 

2,219 

 Total     37,723 
 

37,135 

       ii) Included in Administrative Expenses    
 

 

 τ salaries and wages    14,143 
 

15,524 

 τ superannuation    1,084 
 

1,147 

 τ employee entitlements    (259) 
 

580 

 τ share based payments    46 
 

511 

 τ other      2,549 
 

2,592 

 Total      17,563 
 

20,354 

 Total Employee benefit expenses    55,286  
 57,489 

    
 

 

d) Corporate, shared service and Board expenses   
 

 

 τ Administrative costs   1,108 
 

1,048  

 τ Personnel expenses   2,483 
 

3,527 

 τ Depreciation expense   287 
 

323 

   Total      3,878 
 

4,898 

  
 

 

e) Business operating expenses     
 

 

 τ Administrative costs   5,512 
 

6,311 

 τ Personnel expenses   15,080 
 

16,828 

 τ Depreciation expense   723 
 

416 

 τ Other   875 
 

1,269 

   22,190 
 

24,823 

f) Other expenses      
 

 

 τ Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment  1,273 
 

553 

 τ Other    525 
 

118 

       1,798 
 

671 

g) Other items included in the income statement   
 

 

 τ Bad and doubtful debts   1,273 
 

25 

 τ Repairs and maintenance   523 
 

235 

     1,796 
 

260 
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Note 8   Income Tax 

  Consolidated Group 

(a) Income Tax Expense 
  

 2016  

  
 

2015 

  $000  $000 

 The major components of income tax expense are:    

 
 
Current income tax    

 Current income tax charge 573  3,340 

 Adjustments in respect of current income tax or previous years (16)  (17) 

 
 
Deferred tax    

 Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (1,898)  (1,970) 

 Income tax expense reported in the statement of comprehensive income (1,341)  1,353 

     

(b) Amounts charged or credited directly to equity    
     

 Current income tax relating to items charged (credited) directly to equity    

 Foreign exchange (123)  - 

 
 
Deferred income tax relating to items charged (credited) directly to equity -  - 

 Income tax expense reported in equity (123)  - 

     

(c) 
Numerical reconciliation between aggregate tax expense recognised in the statement of comprehensive 
income and tax expense calculated per statutory income tax rate     

 Accounting profit before tax  (8,433)  4,173 

 Total accounting profit before tax (8,433)  4,173 

     

 At Parent Entity's statutory income tax rate of 30% (2015: 30%) (2,530)  1,252 

 Adjustments in respect of prior years (503)  (252) 

 Foreign tax rate adjustment 157  (1,205) 

 Deferred tax not recognised 1,245  276 

 Withholding tax in non-Australian jurisdictions 101  2,153 

 Share based payments (13)  (64) 

 Other 202  (807) 

 Aggregate income tax expense (1,341)  1,353 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 








































